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Tubi Limited

ABN: 25 139 142 493

Directors' Report
30 June 2020

7KH�GLUHFWRUV�SUHVHQW�WKHLU�UHSRUW��WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�*URXS��EHLQJ�7XEL�/LPLWHG�
�WKH�&RPSDQ\��DQG�LWV�FRQWUROOHG�HQWLWLHV��IRU�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH�������

�ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ�Θ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽŶ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ�

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH�������DQG�XS�WR�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKLV�UHSRUW�DUH�VHW�
RXW�EHORZ��$OO�'LUHFWRUV�KHOG�WKHLU�SRVLWLRQ�DV�D�'LUHFWRU�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�HQWLUH�\HDU�DQG�XS�WR�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKLV�
UHSRUW�XQOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�VWDWHG��

0U��6LPRQ�%LUG� &KDLUPDQ��$SSRLQWHG���0DUFK�������	�,QGHSHQGHQW�1RQ�([HFXWLYH�
'LUHFWRU��$SSRLQWHG���'HFHPEHU�������

0U��0DUFHOOR�5XVVR� ([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�	�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU��$SSRLQWHG����)HEUXDU\�
������

0U��%UHQW�(PPHWW� ,QGHSHQGHQW�1RQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�

0U��$QWKRQ\�
:LOOVDOOHQ�

1RQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�

0U��0LFKDHO�7LOOH\� &KDLUPDQ�	�1RQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU��5HWLUHG���0DUFK�������

0U��-HIIUH\�6KRUWHU� &KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU��7XEL�/LPLWHG��	�([HFXWLYH�&KDLUPDQ��7XEL�
86$�,QF���5HVLJQHG����)HEUXDU\�������

0U��&UDLJ�/DZQ� 1RQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU��5HVLJQHG���'HFHPEHU�������

�

'LUHFWRU� ([SHULHQFH�

6LPRQ�%LUG�

&KDLUPDQ�	�
,QGHSHQGHQW�1RQ�
([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�

,QWHUHVWV�LQ�6KDUHV��
1LO�

,QWHUHVWV�LQ�/LVWHG�
2SWLRQV��
1LO�

�

6LPRQ�KDV�RYHU����\HDUV�RI�JOREDO�SXEOLF�FRPSDQ\�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�
ERWK�VHQLRU�H[HFXWLYH�DQG�ERDUG�UROHV���

&XUUHQW�GLUHFWRUVKLSV�LQFOXGH�/HDG�,QGHSHQGHQW�'LUHFWRU�RI�0RXQW�
*LEVRQ�,URQ��$6;��0*;��DQG�1RQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�RI�3DFLILF�
$PHULFDQ�+ROGLQJV��$6;��3$.���5HFHQW�GLUHFWRUVKLSV�LQFOXGH�&3$�
$XVWUDOLD�DQG�VHYHUDO�SULYDWH�FRPSDQLHV���

6LPRQ�LV�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�1RPLQDWLRQV�	�+XPDQ�5HVRXUFHV�
&RPPLWWHH�DQG�WKH�$XGLW�	�5LVN�&RPPLWWHH��

�

0DUFHOOR�5XVVR�

([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU��
&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�
2IILFHU�	�)RXQGHU�

,QWHUHVWV�LQ�6KDUHV��
�����������

,QWHUHVWV�LQ�/LVWHG�
2SWLRQV��
��������

0DUFHOOR�5XVVR�LV�WKH�)RXQGHU�DQG�H[HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�RI�7XEL��
KDYLQJ�VWHHUHG�WKH�&RPSDQ\�VLQFH�LWV�LQFHSWLRQ�LQ�������0DUFHOOR�
KDV�KDG�RYHU����\HDUV�RI�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�SLSH�VWUDWHJ\��LQQRYDWLRQ�
DQG�PDQXIDFWXUH��ZKLFK�LV�UHIOHFWHG�LQ�7XEL
V�IRFXV�RQ�IXWXUH�JURZWK�
DQG�JOREDO�LQGXVWU\�GHYHORSPHQW��

$6;�/LVWHG�&RPSDQ\�'LUHFWRUVKLSV�LQ�WKH�SDVW�WKUHH�\HDUV���1LO�

%UHQW�(PPHWW�

,QGHSHQGHQW�1RQ�
([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�

,QWHUHVWV�LQ�6KDUHV��

%UHQW�(PPHWW�KDV�RYHU����\HDUV
�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�SHWUROHXP�
H[SORUDWLRQ��H[SORUDWLRQ�DQG�SURGXFWLRQ�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�
LQYHVWPHQW�EDQNLQJ���

%UHQW�EHJDQ�ZRUN�DV�DQ�H[SORUDWLRQLVW�LQ�$XVWUDOLD��3DSXD�1HZ�
*XLQHD�DQG�1HZ�=HDODQG�IRU�(VVR��QRZ�([[RQ0RELO��DQG�WKHQ�(OI�
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Directors' Report
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'LUHFWRU� ([SHULHQFH�

��������

,QWHUHVWV�LQ�/LVWHG�
2SWLRQV��
�������

$TXLWDLQH��+H�MRLQHG�$PSROH[�DV�([SORUDWLRQ�0DQDJHU�LQ������DQG�
ILOOHG�JHQHUDO�PDQDJHPHQW�UROHV�LQ�1RUWK�DQG�6RXWK�$PHULFD��
,QWHUQDWLRQDO�DQG�%XVLQHVV�'HYHORSPHQW��DQG�ZDV�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�
([HFXWLYH�&RPPLWWHH���

)URP������XQWLO������%UHQW�ZDV�0DQDJLQJ�'LUHFWRU���2LO�	�*DV�
$GYLVRU\�ZLWK�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�EDQNLQJ�ILUP�RI�&,%&�:RUOG�0DUNHWV���

%UHQW�ZDV�WKH�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU�DQG�0DQDJLQJ�'LUHFWRU�RI�
+RUL]RQ�2LO�IRU����\HDUV��ZKHUH�KH�ZDV�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�ULVN�
PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�GLVFORVXUH�FRPPLWWHHV��+H�UHWLUHG�DV�&(2�RI�
+RUL]RQ�2LO�LQ�-XQH������DQG�LV�FXUUHQWO\�DQ�DGYLVRU�WR�WKH�ERDUG��
+H�UHPDLQV�DFWLYHO\�LQYROYHG�LQ�WKH�RLO�EXVLQHVV�DV�D�VHQLRU�DGYLVRU�
WR�LQGXVWU\�SDUWLFLSDQWV��

+H�KROGV�D�%DFKHORU�RI�6FLHQFH�)LUVW�&ODVV�+RQRXUV�GHJUHH�LQ�
SK\VLFV�DQG�JHRSK\VLFV�IURP�$GHODLGH�8QLYHUVLW\��

%UHQW�LV�&KDLUPDQ�RI�WKH�1RPLQDWLRQV�	�+XPDQ�5HVRXUFHV�
&RPPLWWHH��DQG�&KDLUPDQ�RI�WKH�$XGLW�	�5LVN�&RPPLWWHH��

$6;�/LVWHG�&RPSDQ\�'LUHFWRUVKLSV�LQ�WKH�SDVW�WKUHH�\HDUV��+RUL]RQ�
2LO�/LPLWHG��5HVLJQHG����-XQH�������

$QWKRQ\�:LOOVDOOHQ�

1RQ�([HFXWLYH�
'LUHFWRU�

,QWHUHVWV�LQ�6KDUHV��
������������

,QWHUHVWV�LQ�/LVWHG�
2SWLRQV��
����������

7RQ\�:LOOVDOOHQ�KDV����\HDUV�LQ�FRQWUDFWLQJ��IDUPLQJ�DQG�KHDY\�
HTXLSPHQW��+H�PDQDJHG�IDPLO\�DJULFXOWXUDO�HQWHUSULVHV�IRU����\HDUV�
EHIRUH�UHWLULQJ�LQ�������

+H�LV�FXUUHQWO\�0DQDJLQJ�'LUHFWRU�RI�D�SULYDWH�FRPSDQ\�LQYROYHG�LQ�
TXDUU\LQJ�DQG�ZDVWH�VHUYLFHV�VLQFH������ZKLFK�SURGXFHV�DQG�
VXSSOLHV�TXDUU\�SURGXFWV�WR�ODUJH�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�SURMHFWV�LQ�6RXWKHUQ�
1HZ�6RXWK�:DOHV��

+H�KROGV�D�%DFKHORU�RI�$JULFXOWXUDO�(FRQRPLFV�IURP�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\�
RI�1HZ�(QJODQG��

7RQ\�LV�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�1RPLQDWLRQV�	�+XPDQ�5HVRXUFHV�
&RPPLWWHH�DQG�WKH�$XGLW�	�5LVN�&RPPLWWHH��

$6;�/LVWHG�&RPSDQ\�'LUHFWRUVKLSV�LQ�WKH�SDVW�WKUHH�\HDUV���1LO�

�ŽŵƉĂŶǇ�^ĞĐƌĞƚĂƌǇ�

$ULHO�6LYLNRIVN\�LV�WKH�&RPSDQ\�6HFUHWDU\�DQG�&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IILFHU�RI�WKH�*URXS��+H�ZDV�DSSRLQWHG�WR�
WKHVH�SRVLWLRQV�IURP���0DUFK�������

$ULHO�KDV�PRUH�WKDQ����\HDUV�RI�H[SHULHQFH�DV�D�VHQLRU�ILQDQFH�H[HFXWLYH�SULPDULO\�LQ�ILQDQFLDO�VHUYLFHV�DQG�
DFFRXQWLQJ�ERWK�LQ�$XVWUDOLD�DQG�LQWHUQDWLRQDOO\��XQGHUWDNLQJ�&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IILFHU�DQG�&RPSDQ\�
6HFUHWDU\�UROHV�ZLWK�$6;�OLVWHG�DQG�SULYDWH�FRPSDQLHV��LQFOXGLQJ�0DFTXDULH�0HGLD�/LPLWHG�DQG�,QYHVWRUILUVW�
/LPLWHG��QRZ�+8%���/LPLWHG���)XUWKHU��$ULHO�SUHYLRXVO\�VHUYHG�DV�D�'LUHFWRU�RI�)LQDQFLDO�$GYLVRU\�6HUYLFHV�
DW�'HORLWWH�$XVWUDOLD��ZKHUH�KH�VSHFLDOLVHG�LQ�&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IILFHU�VHFRQGPHQWV�DQG�WHFKQLFDO�DFFRXQWLQJ�
DGYLVRU\�HQJDJHPHQWV���

$ULHO�LV�D�)HOORZ�RI�WKH�,QVWLWXWH�RI�&KDUWHUHG�$FFRXQWDQW�LQ�$XVWUDOLD�	�1HZ�=HDODQG��)&$��DQG�D�JUDGXDWH�
PHPEHU�RI�WKH�$XVWUDOLDQ�,QVWLWXWH�RI�&RPSDQ\�'LUHFWRUV��*$,&'��

,DQ�&RDWHV�ZDV�WKH�SUHYLRXV�&RPSDQ\�6HFUHWDU\�DQG�&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IILFHU�DQG�UHVLJQHG�IURP�WKHVH�
SRVLWLRQV�RQ���0DUFK��������

�

�

�
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�ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ�Θ��ŽŵŵŝƚƚĞĞ�DĞĞƚŝŶŐƐ�

7KH�QXPEHU�RI�PHHWLQJV�RI�WKH�*URXS¶V�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�DQG�HDFK�%RDUG�&RPPLWWHH�KHOG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�
HQGHG����-XQH�������DQG�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�PHHWLQJV�DWWHQGHG�E\�HDFK�GLUHFWRU�ZHUH��

'LUHFWRU� %RDUG�0HHWLQJV� $XGLW�	�5LVN�
&RPPLWWHH�0HHWLQJV�

1RPLQDWLRQV�	�+5�
&RPPLWWHH�PHHWLQJV�

(OLJLEOH�
WR�

$WWHQG�

1XPEHU�
$WWHQGHG�

(OLJLEOH�
WR�

$WWHQG�

1XPEHU�
$WWHQGHG�

(OLJLEOH�
WR�$WWHQG�

1XPEHU�
$WWHQGHG�

6LPRQ�%LUG� �� �� �� �� �� ��

0DUFHOOR�
5XVVR�

��� ��� �� �� �� ��

%UHQW�(PPHWW� ��� ��� �� �� �� ��

$QWKRQ\�
:LOOVDOOHQ�

��� ��� �� �� �� ��

0LFKDHO�7LOOH\� �� �� �� �� �� ��

-HIIHU\�6KRUWHU� �� �� �� �� �� ��

&UDLJ�/DZQ� �� �� �� �� �� ��

WƌŝŶĐŝƉĂů��ĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ�

7KH�SULQFLSDO�DFWLYLWLHV�RI�WKH�*URXS�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�ZHUH�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW��RSHUDWLRQ��OHDVLQJ�DQG�VDOH�RI�
PRELOH�PDQXIDFWXULQJ�SODQWV�IRU�WKH�SURGXFWLRQ�RI�KLJK�GHQVLW\�SRO\HWK\OHQH��³+'3(´��SLSHV�IRU�XVH�LQ�WKH�
RLO�DQG�JDV��LUULJDWLRQ��PLQLQJ�DQG�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�VHFWRUV��

7KH�*URXS�FRQWLQXHV�WR�RSHUDWH�LQ�$XVWUDOLD��1HZ�=HDODQG�DQG�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV���

7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�VLJQLILFDQW�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKRVH�DFWLYLWLHV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU��

ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�KƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ�

�����5HYLHZ�RI�RSHUDWLRQV�

6LJQLILFDQW�KLJKOLJKWV�RI�WKH������ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�LQFOXGH��

�� UHYHQXHV�RI��������PLOOLRQ���������������PLOOLRQ���

�� ORVV�DIWHU�WD[�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�*URXS�VKDUHKROGHUV�ZDV�������PLOOLRQ��������SURILW�DIWHU�WD[�������PLOOLRQ���

�� XQGHUO\LQJ�(%,7'$�ZDV�D�ORVV�RI�������PLOOLRQ��������SURILW�RI�������PLOOLRQ����

'XULQJ�WKH�ILUVW�KDOI�RI�WKH�\HDU�WKH�*URXS�FRPSOHWHG�WKH�EXLOGLQJ��FRPPLVVLRQLQJ��DQG�GHOLYHU\�RI�D�0RELOH�
3ODQW�WR�,SOH[�3LSHOLQHV�1=�/LPLWHG��

)URP�WKH�FRPPHQFHPHQW�RI�WKH�\HDU�XQWLO�0DUFK������WKH�*URXS�FRQWLQXHG�WR�PDQXIDFWXUH�+'3(�SLSH�
IURP�LWV�0RELOH�([WUXVLRQ�3ODQW�LQ�WKH�3HUPLDQ�%DVLQ��7H[DV��86$�IRU�036�(QWHUSULVHV��,QF�XQGHU�D�
0DQXIDFWXULQJ�DQG�6XSSO\�$JUHHPHQW��7KH�GHFOLQH�LQ�LQYHVWPHQW�DFWLYLW\�LQ�WKH�XSVWUHDP�RLO�DQG�JDV�
LQGXVWU\�FDXVHG�E\�WKH�GHFOLQH�LQ�RLO�SULFHV�OHG�WR�D�UHGXFWLRQ�LQ�RUGHUV��VHOOLQJ�SULFHV��H[FOXVLYLW\�
UHVWULFWLRQV��DQG�PDUJLQV���

7KH�*URXS�DOVR�LQFXUUHG�VLJQLILFDQW�RSHUDWLQJ�FRVWV�LQ��+�)<���GXH�WR�D�VHULHV�RI�RSHUDWRU�IDLOLQJV��UHVXOWLQJ�
LQ�DSSUR[LPDWHO\�VL[�ZHHNV�RI�ORVW�SURGXFWLRQ��

�

�
ϭ�͞��/d��͟�ĂŶĚ�͞ƵŶĚĞƌůǇŝŶŐ���/d��͟�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽŶͲƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ƉƌĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ďǇ��ƵƐƚƌĂůŝĂŶ��ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ�^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�
;͞��^͟Ϳ͘�dŚĞǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĨŝƚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ���^�ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ͕�ƚĂǆ͕�ĚĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŵŽƌƚŝƐĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐ�ŝƚĞŵƐ͘�
͞hŶĚĞƌůǇŝŶŐ���/d��͟�ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŽŶĞͲŽĨĨ�ůĞŐĂů�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�/WK͘�dŚĞ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�͞��/d��͟�ĂŶĚ�
͞ƵŶĚĞƌůǇŝŶŐ���/d��͟�ƌĞĨůĞĐƚ�ĐŽƌĞ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶƚŝƚǇ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ͘��
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5HVWUXFWXUH�DQG�QHZ�VWUDWHJ\�

7R�PLWLJDWH�WKH�GHFOLQH�LQ�WKH�3HUPLDQ�%DVLQ�DQG�WKH�ULVNV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV��WKH�*URXS�KDV�LQYHVWHG�LQ�DQ�
LQWHUQDO�VDOHV�WHDP�DQG�LQVWLJDWHG�D�FKDQJH�LQ�VHQLRU�PDQDJHPHQW��0DUFHOOR�5XVVR��)RXQGHU�RI�WKH�
EXVLQHVV��ZDV�DSSRLQWHG�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU�LQ�)HEUXDU\�������

7KH�*URXS�VHFXUHG�FXVWRPHUV�LQ�QHZ�PDUNHWV�LQ�)ORULGD��7KURXJK�ODWH�0DUFK�WR�0D\�WZR�SODQWV�ZHUH�
FRPPLVVLRQHG�DW�D�EDVH�VLWH�OHDVHG�IURP�D�NH\�FXVWRPHU�DQG�JOREDO�PLQHU�RI�SKRVSKDWH�DQG�SRWDVK�LQ�
%DUWRZ��)ORULGD���

,PSDFW�RI�&29,'����

3URGXFWLRQ�DW�RXU�EDVH�VLWH�LQ�)ORULGD�LV�FXUUHQWO\�FODVVLILHG�DV�DQ�HVVHQWLDO�VHUYLFH�XQGHU�WKH�&RYLG����
UHVWULFWLRQV��7XEL�LV�QRW�FXUUHQWO\�H[SHULHQFLQJ�PDWHULDO�RSHUDWLQJ�UHVWULFWLRQV�LQ�)ORULGD��ZKHUH�WKH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�RSHUDWLRQV��SULPDULO\�VXSSO\LQJ�WKH�PLQLQJ�LQGXVWU\��VDWLVI\�WKH�HVVHQWLDO�VHUYLFHV�H[HPSWLRQV�WR�
EXVLQHVV�DQG�VRFLDO�UHVWULFWLRQV��5DZ�PDWHULDOV�DUH�GHOLYHUHG�WR�D�UDLO�VLGLQJ�FORVH�WR�7XEL¶V�PDQXIDFWXULQJ�
VLWH��7KH�PDQXIDFWXUH�DQG�VXSSO\�RI�UDZ�PDWHULDOV�WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�RWKHU�VHUYLFHV�FXUUHQWO\�UHPDLQ�DFWLYH��

3URGXFWLRQ�YROXPHV�IURP�ERWK�WKHVH�SODQWV�KDYH�VWHDGLO\�LQFUHDVHG�LQ�WKH�ODVW�TXDUWHU�RI�WKH�\HDU��
3URGXFWLRQ�DW�WKH�SODQW�ORFDWHG�LQ�2GHVVD��7H[DV�KDV�WHPSRUDULO\�EHHQ�VXVSHQGHG��$�GHFLVLRQ�RQ�ZKHWKHU�
WR�NHHS�WKH�SODQW�DW�WKH�2GHVVD�ORFDWLRQ�RU�UH�GHSOR\�LW�ZLOO�EH�PDGH�DV�GLIIHUHQW�UHJLRQDO�PDUNHWV�DUH�
HYDOXDWHG��

)LQDQFLDO�3RVLWLRQ�DW����-XQH������

7KH�*URXS¶V�QHW�DVVHWV�ZHUH��������PLOOLRQ�UHSUHVHQWLQJ�QHW�WDQJLEOH�DVVHWV�SHU�VKDUH�RI��������-XQH�
��������������0DMRU�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�LQFOXGHG�FDVK�RI�������PLOOLRQ�DQG�RWKHU�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�RI�������PLOOLRQ�
�PDLQO\�FRPSULVLQJ�WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV�DQG�LQYHQWRULHV���1RQ�FXUUHQW�DVVHWV�LQFUHDVHG�E\�������PLOOLRQ�RQ�WKH�
SUHYLRXV�\HDU�ODUJHO\�GXH�WR�WKH�FRPPLVVLRQLQJ�DQG�ZRUN�LQ�SURJUHVV�RQ�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�QHZ�SODQWV���

&XUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV��H[FOXGLQJ�ERUURZLQJV��LQFUHDVHG�E\�������PLOOLRQ�PDLQO\�GXH�WR�DQ�LQFUHDVH�LQ�WUDGH�
SD\DEOHV���

^ŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ĂĨĨĂŝƌƐ���

7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�VLJQLILFDQW�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�VWDWH�RI�DIIDLUV�RWKHU�WKDQ�WKH�LWHPV�GLVFORVHG�DERYH��

>ŝŬĞůǇ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽƐƉĞĐƚƐ�

7KH�*URXS�FRQWLQXHV�WR�IRFXV�RQ�H[HFXWLQJ�LWV�VWUDWHJ\�RXWOLQHG�LQ�LWV�SURVSHFWXV�LVVXHG�RQ����-XO\��������

7KH�FRPPLVVLRQLQJ�RI�WZR�QHZ�SODQWV�LQ�WKH�VHFRQG�KDOI�RI�WKH�\HDU��DQG�D�IXUWKHU�SODQW�E\�WKH�HQG�RI�
TXDUWHU���)<����EULQJLQJ�WKH�WRWDO�WR���RSHUDWLRQDO�SODQWV�ZLOO�DOORZ�7XEL�WR�VLJQLILFDQW�VFDOH�LW�RSHUDWLRQV�
DFURVV�D�ZLGHU�DQG�PRUH�GLYHUVH�LQGXVWU\�IRRWSULQW���

.H\�SULRULWLHV�IRU�WKH�QH[W�WZHOYH�PRQWKV�LQFOXGH��

�� 0RELOH�H[WUXVLRQ�SODQW�±�7XEL�KDV�PRELOH�H[WUXVLRQ�SODQWV�WKDW�FDQ�EH�ORFDWHG�DW�WKH�VLWH�RI�GHPDQG��
SURYLGLQJ�D�FOHDU�WUDQVSRUW�FRVW�DGYDQWDJH��,W�FDQ�SURGXFH�ORQJ�OHQJWKV�DQG�ODUJH�GLDPHWHUV���´�±���´��
SURYLGLQJ�IOH[LEOH�SURGXFWLRQ�FDSDFLW\��/RQJ�OHQJWKV�DOVR�SURYLGH�D�PDWHULDO�FRVW�VDYLQJ�WR�WKH�FXVWRPHU�
LQ�LQVWDOODWLRQ��IXVLRQ��DQG�WUDQVSRUW��7XEL�LQWHQGV�WR�FRQWLQXH�WR�GHYHORS�DQG�VHOO�LWV�XQLTXH�WHFKQRORJ\�
ZLWK�D�IRFXV�RQ�PLQLQJ��PXQLFLSDO�DQG�ZDWHU�DQG�JDV�UHWLFXODWLRQ�SURMHFWV�

�� 5HHOLQJ�DQG�VWULQJLQJ�SURMHFWV�±�%HLQJ�DEOH�WR�GHOLYHU�ORQJ�OHQJWKV�DQG�ODUJH�GLDPHWHU�SLSH�RQ�
VSHFLDOLVHG�VWULQJLQJ�WUDLOHUV�DQG�GUXPV�PDWHULDOO\�UHGXFHV�LQVWDOODWLRQ�FRVWV�IRU�WKH�FOLHQW��3UH�WUHDWHG��
FKORULQDWHG��UHHOHG�SLSH�LV�UHDG\�IRU�OD\LQJ�DGGLQJ�D�XQLTXH�YDOXH�DGGHG�VHUYLFH�DYDLODEOH�IRU�
FXVWRPHUV��

�� 0RELOH�UHF\FOLQJ�FDSDELOLWLHV�±�7XEL�LQWHQGV�WR�GHYHORS�D�PRELOH�UHF\FOLQJ�FDSDELOLW\�ZKLFK�LV�XQLTXH�WR�
7XEL��0RELOH�UHF\FOLQJ�LV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�D�KLJK�PDUJLQ�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�UHF\FOH�FXVWRPHUV¶�ROG�SLSH�LQWR�
QHZ�SLSH�UHGXFLQJ�WKHLU�HQYLURQPHQWDO�LPSDFW��UHF\FOLQJ��DQG�UDZ�PDWHULDO�FRVWV��,W�LV�DQWLFLSDWHG�WKDW�
WKH�PRELOH�SODQW�ZLOO�EH�FR�ORFDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�PRELOH�H[WUXVLRQ�SODQW��
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ZŝƐŬ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ��

7KH�QDWXUH�RI�WKH�*URXS¶V�EXVLQHVV�H[SRVHV�LW�WR�FHUWDLQ�ULVNV��7KHVH�ULVNV�DUH�DFWLYHO\�PRQLWRUHG�DQG�
PDQDJHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�%RDUG�$XGLW�DQG�5LVN�&RPPLWWHH�ZKR�DVVLVWV�WKH�%RDUG�LQ�IXOILOOLQJ�LWV�
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�RYHUVLJKW�RI�WKH�7XEL�*URXS
V�ULVN�SURILOH���

�ŝǀŝĚĞŶĚƐ�

7KHUH�ZHUH�QR�GLYLGHQGV�SDLG��UHFRPPHQGHG�RU�GHFODUHG�GXULQJ�WKH�FXUUHQW�RU�SUHYLRXV�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU��

^ƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ��ǀĞŶƚƐ�

�
6XEVHTXHQW�WR�WKH�\HDU�HQG��WKH�*URXS�VXFFHVVIXOO\�FRPSOHWHG�D������PLOOLRQ�FDSLWDO�UDLVLQJ�E\�ZD\�RI�D�
SODFHPHQW�DQG�DFFHOHUDWHG�QRQ�UHQRXQFHDEOH�LQVWLWXWLRQDO�HQWLWOHPHQW�RIIHU�WR�HOLJLEOH�QHZ�LQYHVWRUV�DQG�
H[LVWLQJ�VKDUHKROGHUV��7KH�FDSLWDO�UDLVLQJ�ZDV�ZHOO�VXSSRUWHG�DQG�VHHV�VHYHUDO�QHZ�LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�
VRSKLVWLFDWHG�LQYHVWRUV�MRLQLQJ�WKH�UHJLVWHU��$OO�'LUHFWRUV�DQG�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV�SDUWLFLSDWHG�LQ�WKH�FDSLWDO�
UDLVLQJ��

(OLJLEOH�6KDUHKROGHUV�DOVR�UHFHLYHG�RQH�IUHH�1HZ�2SWLRQ�IRU�HYHU\�WKUHH�1HZ�6KDUHV�WKH\�VXEVFULEH�IRU�
XQGHU�WKH�(QWLWOHPHQW�2IIHU��7KH�1HZ�2SWLRQV�DUH�H[HUFLVDEOH�DW�������DW�DQ\�WLPH�IURP�WKH�GDWH�RI�LVVXH�
XQWLO����-XQH�������

7KH�*URXS¶V�UHYHQXHV��DQG�HDUQLQJV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH������ZHUH�ZLWKLQ�WKH�UDQJH�RXWOLQHG�LQ�RXU�
3URVSHFWXV�IRU�WKH�FDSLWDO�UDLVLQJ��GDWHG����-XO\�������

7KH�*URXS�LV�ZHOO�SRLVHG�WR�FRQWLQXH�LWV�JURZWK�VWUDWHJ\��IXUWKHU�SURGXFW�GLYHUVLILFDWLRQ�DQG�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�
KLJKHU�PDUJLQ�SURGXFWV��7KH�*URXS�KDV�VWUHQJWKHQHG�LWV�EDODQFH�VKHHW�DQG�LV�FDSLWDOLVHG�WR�DGG�SURGXFW�
DQG�UHF\FOLQJ�FDSDELOLWLHV�DQG�FRQWLQXH�LWV�FXVWRPHU�DQG�LQGXVWU\�GLYHUVLILFDWLRQ��

�ŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů�/ƐƐƵĞƐ�

7KH�*URXS¶V�RSHUDWLRQV�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�ORFDO��VWDWH�DQG�IHGHUDO�HQYLURQPHQWDO�OHJLVODWLRQ�DQG�UHJXODWLRQV�LQ�
WKH�MXULVGLFWLRQV�LQ�ZKLFK�LW�RSHUDWHV��7KH�%RDUG�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�UHJXODU�PRQLWRULQJ�RI�HQYLURQPHQWDO�
H[SRVXUH�DQG�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�HQYLURQPHQWDO�UHJXODWLRQV�DQG�DUH�QRW�DZDUH�RI�DQ\�EUHDFKHV�RI�WKHVH�
UHJXODWLRQV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU���

/ŶĚĞŵŶŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ�Θ�/ŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ�Θ�KĨĨŝĐĞƌƐ�

7KH�*URXS�KDV�HQWHUHG�LQWR�GHHGV�RI�LQGHPQLW\��DFFHVV�DQG�LQVXUDQFH�ZLWK�HDFK�'LUHFWRU��8QGHU�WKHVH�
GHHGV��WKH�*URXS�KDV�DJUHHG�WR�LQGHPQLI\��WR�WKH�H[WHQW�SHUPLWWHG�E\�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQV�$FW��HDFK�'LUHFWRU�LQ�
UHVSHFW�RI�FHUWDLQ�OLDELOLWLHV�ZKLFK�WKH�'LUHFWRU�PD\�LQFXU�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI��RU�E\�UHDVRQ�RI��ZKHWKHU�VROHO\�RU�LQ�
SDUW���EHLQJ�RU�DFWLQJ�DV�DQ�RIILFHU�RI�WKH�*URXS��7KHVH�OLDELOLWLHV�LQFOXGH�ORVVHV�RU�OLDELOLWLHV�LQFXUUHG�E\�WKH�
'LUHFWRU�WR�DQ\�RWKHU�SHUVRQ�DV�DQ�RIILFHU�RI�WKH�*URXS��LQFOXGLQJ�OHJDO�H[SHQVHV���

7KH�*URXS�KDV�DOVR�DJUHHG�WR�PDLQWDLQ�LQ�IDYRXU�RI�HDFK�RIILFHU�D�GLUHFWRUV¶�DQG�RIILFHUV¶�SROLF\�RI�LQVXUDQFH�
IRU�WKH�SHULRG�WKDW�WKH\�DUH�RIILFHUV�DQG�IRU�VHYHQ�\HDUV�DIWHU�WKH\�FHDVH�WR�DFW�DV�RIILFHUV��

WƌŽĐĞĞĚŝŶŐƐ�ŽŶ��ĞŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŵƉĂŶǇ�

1R�SHUVRQ�KDV�DSSOLHG�WR�WKH�&RXUW�XQGHU�VHFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQV�$FW������IRU�OHDYH�WR�EULQJ�
SURFHHGLQJV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�*URXS��RU�WR�LQWHUYHQH�LQ�DQ\�SURFHHGLQJV�WR�ZKLFK�WKH�*URXS�LV�D�SDUW\�IRU�WKH�
SXUSRVH�RI�WDNLQJ�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�*URXS�IRU�DOO�RU�SDUW�RI�WKRVH�SURFHHGLQJV��

�ƵĚŝƚŽƌ�

3.)�16��$XGLW�	�$VVXUDQFH�/LPLWHG�3DUWQHUVKLS�FRQWLQXHV�LQ�RIILFH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�VHFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�
&RUSRUDWLRQV�$FW�������

�ƵĚŝƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶĐĞ��ĞĐůĂƌĂƚŝŽŶ�

$�FRS\�RI�WKH�DXGLWRU¶V�LQGHSHQGHQFH�GHFODUDWLRQ�DV�UHTXLUHG�XQGHU�VHFWLRQ����&�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQV�$FW�
�����LV�VHW�RXW�RQ�SDJH����RI�WKH�$QQXDO�5HSRUW��
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EŽŶͲ�ƵĚŝƚ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�

'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU��HQWLWLHV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�3.)�16��$XGLW�	�$VVXUDQFH�/LPLWHG�3DUWQHUVKLS��H[WHUQDO�DXGLWRU�
WR�WKH�*URXS��KDYH�SURYLGHG�RWKHU�VHUYLFHV�LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�VWDWXWRU\�DXGLWV��DV�GLVFORVHG�LQ�1RWH����RI�WKH�
ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

7KH�'LUHFWRUV�DUH�VDWLVILHG�WKDW�WKH�SURYLVLRQ�RI�QRQ�DXGLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�E\�WKH�DXGLWRU�DUH�FRPSDWLEOH�
ZLWK�WKH�JHQHUDO�VWDQGDUG�RI�LQGHSHQGHQFH�IRU�DXGLWRUV�LPSRVHG�E\�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQV�$FW�������7KH�
'LUHFWRUV�DUH�VDWLVILHG�WKDW�WKHVH�QRQ�DXGLW�VHUYLFHV�GR�QRW�FRPSURPLVH�WKH�H[WHUQDO�DXGLWRU¶V�
LQGHSHQGHQFH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQV�$FW������IRU�WKH�IROORZLQJ�UHDVRQV��

�� DOO�QRQ�DXGLW�VHUYLFHV�KDYH�EHHQ�UHYLHZHG�DQG�DSSURYHG�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH\�GR�QRW�LPSDFW�WKH�LQWHJULW\�
DQG�REMHFWLYLW\�RI�WKH�DXGLWRU��DQG�

�� QRQH�RI�WKH�VHUYLFHV�XQGHUPLQH�WKH�JHQHUDO�SULQFLSOHV�UHODWLQJ�WR�DXGLWRU�LQGHSHQGHQFH�DV�VHW�RXW�LQ�
$3(6�����&RGH�RI�(WKLFV�IRU�3URIHVVLRQDO�$FFRXQWDQWV�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�$FFRXQWLQJ�3URIHVVLRQDO�DQG�
(WKLFDO�6WDQGDUGV�%RDUG��LQFOXGLQJ�UHYLHZLQJ�RU�DXGLWLQJ�WKH�DXGLWRU¶V�RZQ�ZRUN��DFWLQJ�LQ�D�
PDQDJHPHQW�RI�GHFLVLRQ�PDNLQJ�FDSDFLW\�IRU�WKH�*URXS��DFWLQJ�DV�DGYRFDWH�IRU�WKH�*URXS�RU�MRLQWO\�
VKDULQJ�HFRQRPLF�ULVNV�DQG�UHZDUGV����

�
� �
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ZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�;�ƵĚŝƚĞĚͿ�

,QWURGXFWLRQ�

7KH�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�UHSRUW�GHWDLOV�WKH�NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO��³.03´��UHPXQHUDWLRQ�DUUDQJHPHQWV�IRU�
WKH�*URXS��LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQV�$FW������DQG�LWV�UHJXODWLRQV��

.03�DUH�WKRVH�SHUVRQV�KDYLQJ�DXWKRULW\�DQG�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�SODQQLQJ��GLUHFWLQJ�DQG�FRQWUROOLQJ�WKH�
DFWLYLWLHV�RI�WKH�HQWLW\��GLUHFWO\�RU�LQGLUHFWO\��LQFOXGLQJ�DOO�'LUHFWRUV��7KH�IROORZLQJ�SHUVRQV�RI�WKH�*URXS�ZHUH�
FODVVLILHG�DV�.03�GXULQJ�WKH������ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�DQG�XQOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�LQGLFDWHG��ZHUH�FODVVLILHG�DV�.03�
IRU�WKH�HQWLUH�\HDU��

6LPRQ�%LUG� &KDLUPDQ��$SSRLQWHG���0DUFK�������	�,QGHSHQGHQW�1RQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�
�$SSRLQWHG���'HFHPEHU�������

0DUFHOOR�5XVVR� ([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�	�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU�����)HEUXDU\�������

%UHQW�(PPHWW� � ,QGHSHQGHQW�1RQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�

$QWKRQ\�:LOOVDOOHQ�� 1RQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU��

0LFKDHO�7LOOH\� � &KDLUPDQ�	�1RQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU��5HWLUHG���0DUFK�������

-HIIHU\�6KRUWHU� &KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU��7XEL�/LPLWHG��	�([HFXWLYH�&KDLUPDQ��7XEL�86$��
� � � �5HVLJQHG����)HEUXDU\�������

&UDLJ�/DZQ� � ,QGHSHQGHQW�1RQ�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU��5HVLJQHG���'HFHPEHU�������

$ULHO�6LYLNRIVN\� &RPSDQ\�6HFUHWDU\�	�&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IILFHU��$SSRLQWHG���0DUFK�������

,DQ�&RDWHV� � &RPSDQ\�6HFUHWDU\�	�&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IILFHU��5HVLJQHG���0DUFK�������

7KLV�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�UHSRUW�LV�VHW�RXW�XQGHU�WKH�IROORZLQJ�PDLQ�KHDGLQJV��

�� 5HPXQHUDWLRQ�)UDPHZRUN�

�� (TXLW\�,QFHQWLYH�3ODQV�

�� 6HUYLFH�$JUHHPHQWV�

�� 'HWDLOV�RI�5HPXQHUDWLRQ�

�� 6KDUH�%DVHG�&RPSHQVDWLRQ�

�� $GGLWLRQDO�'LVFORVXUHV�5HODWLQJ�WR�.H\�0DQDJHPHQW�3HUVRQQHO�

5HPXQHUDWLRQ�)UDPHZRUN�

7KH�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�SROLF\�RI�WKH�*URXS�KDV�EHHQ�GHVLJQHG�WR�DOLJQ�.03�REMHFWLYHV�ZLWK�VKDUHKROGHU�DQG�
EXVLQHVV�REMHFWLYHV�E\�SURYLGLQJ�D�IL[HG�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�FRPSRQHQW�DQG�RIIHULQJ�VSHFLILF�ORQJ�WHUP�LQFHQWLYHV�
EDVHG�RQ�NH\�SHUIRUPDQFH�DUHDV�DIIHFWLQJ�WKH�*URXS
V�ILQDQFLDO�UHVXOWV��7KH�%RDUG�EHOLHYHV�WKH�
UHPXQHUDWLRQ�SROLF\�WR�EH�DSSURSULDWH�DQG�HIIHFWLYH�LQ�LWV�DELOLW\�WR�DWWUDFW�DQG�UHWDLQ�WKH�EHVW�NH\�
PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�WR�UXQ�DQG�PDQDJH�WKH�*URXS��DV�ZHOO�DV�FUHDWH�JRDO�FRQJUXHQFH�EHWZHHQ�
GLUHFWRUV��H[HFXWLYHV�DQG�VKDUHKROGHUV��

7KH�%RDUG
V�SROLF\�IRU�GHWHUPLQLQJ�WKH�QDWXUH�DQG�DPRXQW�RI�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�IRU�NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�
RI�WKH�*URXS�LV�DV�IROORZV��

�� 7KH�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�SROLF\�KDV�EHHQ�GHYHORSHG�E\�WKH�5HPXQHUDWLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�DQG�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�
%RDUG�IROORZLQJ�SURIHVVLRQDO�DGYLFH�IURP�LQGHSHQGHQW�H[WHUQDO�FRQVXOWDQWV��

�� $OO�NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�UHFHLYH�D�EDVH�VDODU\��ZKLFK�LV�EDVHG�RQ�IDFWRUV�VXFK�DV�OHQJWK�RI�
VHUYLFH�DQG�H[SHULHQFH���VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ��IULQJH�EHQHILWV��DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�LQFHQWLYHV��

�� 3HUIRUPDQFH�LQFHQWLYHV�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�SUHGHWHUPLQHG�NH\�SHUIRUPDQFH�LQGLFDWRUV��

�� ,QFHQWLYHV�SDLG�LQ�WKH�IRUP�RI�RSWLRQV�RU�ULJKWV�DUH�LQWHQGHG�WR�DOLJQ�WKH�LQWHUHVWV�RI�WKH�.03�DQG�WKH�
*URXS�ZLWK�WKRVH�RI�WKH�VKDUHKROGHUV��,Q�WKLV�UHJDUG��NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�DUH�SURKLELWHG�IURP�
OLPLWLQJ�ULVN�DWWDFKHG�WR�WKRVH�LQVWUXPHQWV�E\�XVH�RI�GHULYDWLYHV�RU�RWKHU�PHDQV��

�� 7KH�5HPXQHUDWLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�UHYLHZV�NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�SDFNDJHV�DQQXDOO\�E\�UHIHUHQFH�WR�
WKH�*URXS¶V�SHUIRUPDQFH��H[HFXWLYH�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�FRPSDUDEOH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�IURP�LQGXVWU\�VHFWRUV��

7KH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�.03�LV�PHDVXUHG�DJDLQVW�FULWHULD�DJUHHG�DQQXDOO\�ZLWK�HDFK�H[HFXWLYH�DQG�LV�EDVHG�
SUHGRPLQDQWO\�RQ�WKH�IRUHFDVW�JURZWK�RI�WKH�*URXS¶V�SURILWV�DQG�VKDUHKROGHUV¶�YDOXH��$OO�ERQXVHV�DQG�
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LQFHQWLYHV�PXVW�EH�OLQNHG�WR�SUHGHWHUPLQHG�SHUIRUPDQFH�FULWHULD��7KH�%RDUG�PD\��KRZHYHU��H[HUFLVH�LWV�
GLVFUHWLRQ�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�DSSURYLQJ�LQFHQWLYHV��ERQXVHV�DQG�RSWLRQV��DQG�FDQ�UHFRPPHQG�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�
&RPPLWWHH¶V�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV��$Q\�FKDQJHV�PXVW�EH�MXVWLILHG�E\�UHIHUHQFH�WR�PHDVXUDEOH�SHUIRUPDQFH�
FULWHULD��7KH�SROLF\�LV�GHVLJQHG�WR�DWWUDFW�WKH�KLJKHVW�FDOLEUH�RI�H[HFXWLYHV�DQG�UHZDUG�WKHP�IRU�SHUIRUPDQFH�
WKDW�UHVXOWV�LQ�ORQJ�WHUP�JURZWK�LQ�VKDUHKROGHU�ZHDOWK��

.H\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�UHFHLYH�D�VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ�JXDUDQWHH�FRQWULEXWLRQ�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�ODZ��ZKLFK�LV�
FXUUHQWO\�������DQG�GR�QRW�UHFHLYH�DQ\�RWKHU�UHWLUHPHQW�EHQHILWV��6RPH�LQGLYLGXDOV��KRZHYHU��PD\�FKRRVH�
WR�VDFULILFH�SDUW�RI�WKHLU�VDODU\�WR�LQFUHDVH�SD\PHQWV�WRZDUGV�VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ��

8SRQ�UHWLUHPHQW��NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�DUH�SDLG�HPSOR\HH�EHQHILW�HQWLWOHPHQWV�DFFUXHG�WR�WKH�GDWH�RI�
UHWLUHPHQW���

$OO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�SDLG�WR�.03�LV�YDOXHG�DW�WKH�FRVW�WR�WKH�*URXS�DQG�H[SHQVHG���

7KH�%RDUG
V�SROLF\�LV�WR�UHPXQHUDWH�QRQ�H[HFXWLYH�GLUHFWRUV�DW�PDUNHW�UDWHV�IRU�WLPH��FRPPLWPHQW�DQG�
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV��7KH�5HPXQHUDWLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�GHWHUPLQHV�SD\PHQWV�WR�WKH�QRQ�H[HFXWLYH�GLUHFWRUV�DQG�
UHYLHZV�WKHLU�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�DQQXDOO\��EDVHG�RQ�PDUNHW�SUDFWLFH��GXWLHV�DQG�DFFRXQWDELOLW\��,QGHSHQGHQW�
H[WHUQDO�DGYLFH�LV�VRXJKW�ZKHQ�UHTXLUHG��7KH�PD[LPXP�DJJUHJDWH�DPRXQW�RI�IHHV�WKDW�FDQ�EH�SDLG�WR�
QRQ�H[HFXWLYH�GLUHFWRUV�LV�VXEMHFW�WR�DSSURYDO�E\�VKDUHKROGHUV�DW�WKH�$QQXDO�*HQHUDO�0HHWLQJ��7KH�FXUUHQW�
PD[LPXP�LV�����������

&HUWDLQ�.03�DUH�DOVR�HQWLWOHG�WR�ORQJ�WHUP�LQFHQWLYHV��³/7,V´��LQ�WKH�IRUP�RI�VKDUH�EDVHG�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�WR�
IXUWKHU�DOLJQ�WKHLU�LQWHUHVWV�ZLWK�VKDUHKROGHUV
�LQWHUHVWV��'HWDLOV�UHJDUGLQJ�VKDUH�EDVHG�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�LV�VHW�
RXW�EHORZ��

.H\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�ZKR�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�WKHVH�DUUDQJHPHQWV�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�D�SROLF\�JRYHUQLQJ�WKH�
XVH�RI�H[WHUQDO�KHGJLQJ�DUUDQJHPHQWV��6XFK�SHUVRQQHO�DUH�SURKLELWHG�IURP�HQWHULQJ�LQWR�KHGJH�
DUUDQJHPHQWV��L�H��SXW�RSWLRQV��RQ�XQYHVWHG�VKDUHV�DQG�RSWLRQV�ZKLFK�IRUP�SDUW�RI�WKHLU�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�
SDFNDJH��7HUPV�RI�HPSOR\PHQW�VLJQHG�E\�VXFK�SHUVRQQHO�FRQWDLQ�GHWDLOV�RI�VXFK�UHVWULFWLRQV��

(TXLW\�,QFHQWLYH�3ODQV�

$XVWUDOLDQ�/RQJ�7HUP�,QFHQWLYH�3ODQ�

7KH�*URXS�KDV�DGRSWHG�DQ�HPSOR\HH�LQFHQWLYH�SODQ�NQRZQ�DV�WKH�7XEL�/LPLWHG�/RQJ�7HUP�,QFHQWLYH�3ODQ�
�³/7,�3ODQ´���WR�DVVLVW�LQ�WKH�UHZDUG��UHWHQWLRQ�DQG�PRWLYDWLRQ�RI�WKH�*URXS
V�'LUHFWRUV��VHQLRU�PDQDJHPHQW��
DQG�RWKHU�HPSOR\HHV��7KH�/7,�3ODQ�LV�LQWHQGHG�WR�DVVLVW�ZLWK�DOLJQLQJ�WKH�LQWHUHVWV�RI�SDUWLFLSDQWV�ZLWK�
VKDUHKROGHUV�E\�SURYLGLQJ�DQ�RSSRUWXQLW\�IRU�(OLJLEOH�3DUWLFLSDQWV�WR�HDUQ�HTXLW\�LQWHUHVWV�LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\��

8QGHU�WKH�UXOHV�RI�WKH�/7,�3ODQ��WKH�%RDUG�KDV�GLVFUHWLRQ�WR�RIIHU��

�� D�IXOO�WLPH�RU�SDUW�WLPH�HPSOR\HH�RI�DQ\�*URXS�&RPSDQ\�RU�D�'LUHFWRU�2SWLRQV�WR�DFTXLUH�VKDUHV�DQG�RU�
3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�WR�DFTXLUH�6KDUHV��DQG�

�� DQ\�RWKHU�SHUVRQ�ZKR�LV�GHFODUHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�LQ�LWV�VROH�DQG�DEVROXWH�GLVFUHWLRQ�WR�EH�HOLJLEOH�WR�
UHFHLYH�JUDQWV�RI�2SWLRQV�WR�DFTXLUH�VKDUHV�DQG�RU�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�WR�DFTXLUH�6KDUHV�LQFOXVLYH�RI�
DQ\�2SWLRQV��3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�RU�VLPLODU�LQVWUXPHQWV�LVVXHG�XQGHU�DQ\�RWKHU�LQFHQWLYH�SODQ�RSHUDWHG�
E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\���

�HDFK�UHFLSLHQW�LV�DQ�(OLJLEOH�(PSOR\HH�DQG�WKH�DERYH�DZDUGV�DUH�FROOHFWLYHO\�WKH�$ZDUGV���

,Q�HDFK�FDVH�WKH�$ZDUGV�FDQ�EH�PDGH�VXEMHFW�WR�YHVWLQJ�FRQGLWLRQV�DQG�RU�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�DV�
GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG��

7KH�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�WKH�/7,�3ODQ�DUH�VHW�RXW�LQ�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�UXOHV��$�VXPPDU\�RI�WKH�UXOHV�RI�WKH�
/7,�3ODQ�LV�VHW�RXW�EHORZ��

�� 7KH�/7,�3ODQ�LV�RSHQ�WR�(OLJLEOH�(PSOR\HHV�DV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG��3DUWLFLSDWLRQ�LV�YROXQWDU\��

�� 7KH�%RDUG�PD\�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�W\SH�DQG�QXPEHU�RI�$ZDUGV�WR�EH�LVVXHG�XQGHU�WKH�/7,�3ODQ�WR�HDFK�
SDUWLFLSDQW�DQG�RWKHU�WHUPV�RI�LVVXH�RI�WKH�$ZDUGV��LQFOXGLQJ�EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��

�� ZKDW�FRQGLWLRQV�DQG�RU�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�PXVW�EH�PHW�E\�D�SDUWLFLSDQW�LQ�RUGHU�IRU�DQ�$ZDUG�WR�
YHVW��LI�DQ\���

�� WKH�DPRXQW�SD\DEOH�WR�EH�SDLG�E\�D�SDUWLFLSDQW�RQ�WKH�JUDQW�RI�$ZDUGV��LI�DQ\���

�� WKH�H[HUFLVH�SULFH�RI�DQ\�RSWLRQ�JUDQWHG�WR�D�SDUWLFLSDQW��

�� WKH�SHULRG�GXULQJ�ZKLFK�D�YHVWHG�RSWLRQ�FDQ�EH�H[HUFLVHG��DQG�
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�� DQ\�IRUIHLWXUH�FRQGLWLRQV�RU�GLVSRVDO�UHVWULFWLRQV�DSSO\LQJ�WR�WKH�$ZDUGV�DQG�DQ\�6KDUHV�WKDW�D�
SDUWLFLSDQW�UHFHLYHV�XSRQ�H[HUFLVH�RI�WKHLU�RSWLRQV�RU�YHVWLQJ�RI�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV��

�� :KHQ�DQ\�FRQGLWLRQV�DQG�RU�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�KDYH�EHHQ�VDWLVILHG��WKHLU�2SWLRQV�3HUIRUPDQFH�
5LJKWV�ZLOO�EHFRPH�YHVWHG�DQG�ZLOO�EH�H[HUFLVDEOH�LQWR�6KDUHV��

�� (DFK�YHVWHG�2SWLRQ�DQG�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKW�HQDEOHV�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�WR�EH�LVVXHG�RU�WR�EH�WUDQVIHUUHG�
RQH�6KDUH�XSRQ�H[HUFLVH�RU�YHVWLQJ��DV�DSSOLFDEOH���RU�DQ�HTXLYDOHQW�FDVK�YDOXH��VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�UXOHV�
JRYHUQLQJ�WKH�/7,�3ODQ�DQG�WKH�WHUPV�RI�DQ\�SDUWLFXODU�RIIHU��

�� 3DUWLFLSDQWV�KROGLQJ�2SWLRQV�RU�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�DUH�QRW�SHUPLWWHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�QHZ�LVVXHV�RI�
6HFXULWLHV�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�EXW�DGMXVWPHQWV�PD\�EH�PDGH�WR�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�6KDUHV�RYHU�ZKLFK�WKH�
RSWLRQV�RU�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�DUH�JUDQWHG�DQG�RU�WKH�H[HUFLVH�SULFH��LI�DQ\��WR�WDNH�LQWR�DFFRXQW�
FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�FDSLWDO�VWUXFWXUH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WKDW�RFFXU�E\�ZD\�RI�SUR�UDWD�DQG�ERQXV�LVVXHV�LQ�
DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UXOHV�RI�WKH�/7,�3ODQ�DQG�WKH�$6;�/LVWLQJ�5XOHV��

�� ,I�D��FKDQJH�RI�FRQWURO�HYHQW��RFFXUV�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\��DQG�XQOHVV�WKH�%RDUG�GHWHUPLQHV�RWKHUZLVH��DOO�
JUDQWHG�$ZDUGV�ZLOO�LPPHGLDWHO\�YHVW��

$��FKDQJH�RI�FRQWURO��HYHQW�ZLOO�RFFXU�ZKHQ�D�SHUVRQ�RU�HQWLW\�EHFRPHV�D�OHJDO�RU�EHQHILFLDO�RZQHU�RI�
����RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�LVVXHG�FDSLWDO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��D�SHUVRQ�RU�HQWLW\�EHFRPHV�HQWLWOHG�WR��DFTXLUHV��
KROGV�RU�KDV�DQ�HTXLWDEOH�LQWHUHVW�LQ�PRUH�WKDQ�����RI�WKH�LVVXHG�VKDUH�FDSLWDO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��RU�WKH�
%RDUG�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�WKHUH�DUH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�WKDW�KDYH�RFFXUUHG�RU�DUH�OLNHO\�WR�RFFXU�ZKLFK�ZLOO�
UHVXOW�LQ�VLJQLILFDQW�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�VWUXFWXUH�RU�FRQWURO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZKLFK�PD\�DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFW�WKH�
YDOXH�RI�WKH�$ZDUGV��$��FKDQJH�RI�FRQWURO��HYHQW�GRHV�QRW�LQFOXGH�WKH�OLVWLQJ�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RQ�WKH�
$6;���

�� ,I�D�SDUWLFLSDQW�EHFRPHV�D��EDG�OHDYHU����

�� DOO�YHVWHG�RSWLRQV�ZKLFK�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�H[HUFLVHG�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�LQ�IRUFH�DQG�UHPDLQ�H[HUFLVDEOH�IRU�
���GD\V��XQOHVV�WKH�%RDUG�LQ�LWV�VROH�DQG�DEVROXWH�GLVFUHWLRQ�GHWHUPLQHV�RWKHUZLVH��DQG�

�� DOO�XQYHVWHG�RSWLRQV�DQG�RU�SHUIRUPDQFH�ULJKWV�ZLOO�DXWRPDWLFDOO\�EH�IRUIHLWHG�E\�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�IRU�
WKH�SD\PHQW�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WR�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�RI�QRPLQDO�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ���

$�SDUWLFLSDQW�ZLOO�EH�D��EDG�OHDYHU��LI�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�UHVLJQV��RWKHU�WKDQ�EHFDXVH�WKH\�KDYH�GLHG�RU�
UHVLJQ�GXH�WR�LQFDSDFLW\�DULVLQJ�IURP�VHULRXV�SHUVRQDO�LOOQHVV�RU�LQMXU\���LV�WHUPLQDWHG�IRU�SHUIRUPDQFH�RU�
LV�WHUPLQDWHG�RU�GLVPLVVHG�IRU�PLVFRQGXFW��XQOHVV�WKH�%RDUG�GHWHUPLQHV�RWKHUZLVH�LQ�LWV�DEVROXWH�
GLVFUHWLRQ���

�� ,I�D�SDUWLFLSDQW�LV�D��JRRG�OHDYHU���

�� XQOHVV�WKH�%RDUG�GHWHUPLQHV�RWKHUZLVH�DQ\�DQG�DOO�YHVWHG�RSWLRQV�KHOG�E\�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�ZKLFK�
KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�H[HUFLVHG�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�LQ�IRUFH�DQG�UHPDLQ�H[HUFLVDEOH�IRU����PRQWKV��DQG�

�� WKH�%RDUG�PD\�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�PDQQHU�LQ�ZKLFK�DQ\�XQYHVWHG�$ZDUGV�KHOG�E\�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�ZLOO�EH�
GHDOW�ZLWK���

$�SDUWLFLSDQW�LV�D��JRRG�OHDYHU��LI�WKH\�DUH�QRW�D��EDG�OHDYHU���

�� 7KH�/7,�3ODQ�OLPLWV�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�$ZDUGV�WKDW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�PD\�JUDQW�ZLWKRXW�6KDUHKROGHU�DSSURYDO��
VXFK�WKDW�WKH�VXP�RI�DOO�$ZDUGV�RQ�LVVXH��DVVXPLQJ�DOO�RSWLRQV�DQG�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�ZHUH�
H[HUFLVHG��GR�QRW�DW�DQ\�WLPH�H[FHHG�LQ�DJJUHJDWH����RI�WKH�IXOO\�GLOXWHG�VKDUH�FDSLWDO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�
DV�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�DQ\�SURSRVHG�QHZ�$ZDUGV��

�� 7KH�%RDUG�PD\�GHOHJDWH�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�/7,�3ODQ��WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�DQ\�RI�WKHLU�
SRZHUV�RU�GLVFUHWLRQV�XQGHU�WKH�/7,�3ODQ��WR�D�FRPPLWWHH�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RU�WR�DQ\�RQH�RU�PRUH�SHUVRQV�
VHOHFWHG�E\�WKHP���

�� 6XEMHFW�WR�WKH�$6;�/LVWLQJ�5XOHV�DQG�WKH�&RQVWLWXWLRQ��WKH�%RDUG�PD\�DW�DQ\�WLPH�DPHQG�WKH�/7,�3ODQ�
RU�WKH�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�XSRQ�ZKLFK�$ZDUGV�KDYH�EHHQ�LVVXHG�XQGHU�WKH�/7,�3ODQ�SURYLGHG��
JHQHUDOO\��WKDW�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�GRHV�QRW�PDWHULDOO\�UHGXFH�WKH�ULJKWV�RI�DQ\�3DUWLFLSDQW�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�
$ZDUGV�JUDQWHG�WR�WKHP��

�� 7KH�%RDUG�PD\�HOHFW�WR�XVH�DQ�HPSOR\HH�VKDUH�WUXVW�RU�RWKHU�PHFKDQLVP�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�RI�KROGLQJ�
$ZDUGV�IRU�3DUWLFLSDQWV�XQGHU�WKH�3ODQ�DQG�GHOLYHULQJ�3ODQ�6KDUHV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�3DUWLFLSDQWV�XSRQ�
H[HUFLVH�RI�2SWLRQV�DQG�RU�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV��DV�WKH�FDVH�PD\�EH���

�
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8QLWHG�6WDWHV�6KDUH�,QFHQWLYH�3ODQ�

7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�DGRSWHG�DQ�HPSOR\HH�LQFHQWLYH�SODQ�NQRZQ�DV�WKH�7XEL�/LPLWHG�6KDUH�,QFHQWLYH�3ODQ�
�³6,�3ODQ´���WR�DVVLVW�LQ�WKH�UHZDUG��UHWHQWLRQ�DQG�PRWLYDWLRQ�RI�FHUWDLQ�RI�WKH�*URXS
V�'LUHFWRUV��VHQLRU�
PDQDJHPHQW��DQG�RWKHU�HPSOR\HHV��7KH�6,�3ODQ�LV�LQWHQGHG�WR�DVVLVW�ZLWK�DOLJQLQJ�WKH�LQWHUHVWV�RI�
SDUWLFLSDQWV�ZLWK�VKDUHKROGHUV�E\�SURYLGLQJ�DQ�RSSRUWXQLW\�IRU�HOLJLEOH�SDUWLFLSDQWV�WR�HDUQ�HTXLW\�LQWHUHVWV�LQ�
WKH�&RPSDQ\��

8QGHU�WKH�UXOHV�RI�WKH�6,�3ODQ��WKH�%RDUG�KDV�GLVFUHWLRQ�WR�RIIHU�DQ\�SHUVRQ�ZKR�LV�GHFODUHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�LQ�
LWV�VROH�DQG�DEVROXWH�GLVFUHWLRQ�WR�EH�HOLJLEOH��(OLJLEOH�(PSOR\HH��WR�UHFHLYH�JUDQWV�RI�RSWLRQV�WR�DFTXLUH�
6KDUHV�DQG�RU�UHVWULFWHG�VWRFN�XQLWV�WR�DFTXLUH�6KDUHV��$ZDUGV���

,Q�HDFK�FDVH�WKH�$ZDUGV�FDQ�EH�PDGH�VXEMHFW�WR�YHVWLQJ�FRQGLWLRQV�DQG�RU�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�DV�
GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG��

7KH�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�WKH�6,�3ODQ�DUH�VHW�RXW�LQ�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�UXOHV��$�VXPPDU\�RI�WKH�UXOHV�RI�WKH�
6,�3ODQ�LV�VHW�RXW�EHORZ��

�� 7KH�6,�3ODQ�LV�RSHQ�WR�(OLJLEOH�(PSOR\HHV�DV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG��3DUWLFLSDWLRQ�LV�YROXQWDU\���

�� 7KH�%RDUG�PD\�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�W\SH�DQG�QXPEHU�RI�$ZDUGV�WR�EH�LVVXHG�XQGHU�WKH�6,�3ODQ�WR�HDFK�
SDUWLFLSDQW�DQG�RWKHU�WHUPV�RI�LVVXH�RI�WKH�$ZDUGV��LQFOXGLQJ�EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��

�� ZKDW�FRQGLWLRQV�DQG�RU�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�PXVW�EH�PHW�E\�D�SDUWLFLSDQW�LQ�RUGHU�IRU�DQ�$ZDUG�WR�
YHVW��LI�DQ\���

�� WKH�DPRXQW�SD\DEOH�WR�EH�SDLG�E\�D�SDUWLFLSDQW�RQ�WKH�JUDQW�RI�$ZDUGV��LI�DQ\���

�� WKH�H[HUFLVH�SULFH�RI�DQ\�RSWLRQ�JUDQWHG�WR�D�SDUWLFLSDQW��

�� WKH�SHULRG�GXULQJ�ZKLFK�D�YHVWHG�RSWLRQ�FDQ�EH�H[HUFLVHG��DQG�

�� DQ\�IRUIHLWXUH�FRQGLWLRQV�RU�GLVSRVDO�UHVWULFWLRQV�DSSO\LQJ�WR�WKH�$ZDUGV�DQG�DQ\�6KDUHV�WKDW�D�
SDUWLFLSDQW�UHFHLYHV�XSRQ�H[HUFLVH�RI�WKHLU�RSWLRQV�RU�YHVWLQJ�RI�UHVWULFWHG�VWRFN�XQLWV��

�� :KHQ�DQ\�FRQGLWLRQV�DQG�RU�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�KDYH�EHHQ�VDWLVILHG��WKHLU�RSWLRQV�UHVWULFWHG�VWRFN�
XQLWV�ZLOO�EHFRPH�YHVWHG�DQG�ZLOO�EH�H[HUFLVDEOH�LQWR�6KDUHV��

�� (DFK�YHVWHG�RSWLRQ�DQG�UHVWULFWHG�VWRFN�XQLW�HQDEOHV�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�WR�EH�LVVXHG�RU�WR�EH�WUDQVIHUUHG�
RQH�6KDUH�XSRQ�H[HUFLVH�RU�YHVWLQJ��DV�DSSOLFDEOH���VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�UXOHV�JRYHUQLQJ�WKH�6,�3ODQ�DQG�WKH�
WHUPV�RI�DQ\�SDUWLFXODU�RIIHU��

�� 3DUWLFLSDQWV�KROGLQJ�RSWLRQV�RU�UHVWULFWHG�VWRFN�XQLWV�DUH�QRW�SHUPLWWHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�QHZ�LVVXHV�RI�
6HFXULWLHV�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�EXW�DGMXVWPHQWV�PD\�EH�PDGH�WR�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�6KDUHV�RYHU�ZKLFK�WKH�
RSWLRQV�RU�UHVWULFWHG�VWRFN�XQLWV�DUH�JUDQWHG�DQG�RU�WKH�H[HUFLVH�SULFH��LI�DQ\��WR�WDNH�LQWR�DFFRXQW�
FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�FDSLWDO�VWUXFWXUH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WKDW�RFFXU�E\�ZD\�RI�SUR�UDWD�DQG�ERQXV�LVVXHV�LQ�
DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UXOHV�RI�WKH�6,�3ODQ�DQG�WKH�$6;�/LVWLQJ�5XOHV���

�� ,I�D��FKDQJH�RI�FRQWURO�HYHQW��RFFXUV�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\��DQG�XQOHVV�WKH�%RDUG�GHWHUPLQHV�RWKHUZLVH��DOO�
JUDQWHG�$ZDUGV�ZLOO�LPPHGLDWHO\�YHVW��

$��FKDQJH�RI�FRQWURO��HYHQW�ZLOO�RFFXU�ZKHQ�D�SHUVRQ�RU�HQWLW\�EHFRPHV�D�OHJDO�RU�EHQHILFLDO�RZQHU�RI�
����RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�LVVXHG�FDSLWDO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��D�SHUVRQ�RU�HQWLW\�EHFRPHV�HQWLWOHG�WR��DFTXLUHV��
KROGV�RU�KDV�DQ�HTXLWDEOH�LQWHUHVW�LQ�PRUH�WKDQ�����RI�WKH�LVVXHG�VKDUH�FDSLWDO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��RU�WKH�
%RDUG�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�WKHUH�DUH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�WKDW�KDYH�RFFXUUHG�RU�DUH�OLNHO\�WR�RFFXU�ZKLFK�ZLOO�
UHVXOW�LQ�VLJQLILFDQW�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�VWUXFWXUH�RU�FRQWURO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZKLFK�PD\�DGYHUVHO\�DIIHFW�WKH�
YDOXH�RI�WKH�$ZDUGV��$��FKDQJH�RI�FRQWURO��HYHQW�GRHV�QRW�LQFOXGH�WKH�OLVWLQJ�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RQ�WKH�
$6;���

�� ,I�D�SDUWLFLSDQW�EHFRPHV�D��EDG�OHDYHU����

�� DOO�YHVWHG�RSWLRQV�ZKLFK�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�H[HUFLVHG�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�LQ�IRUFH�DQG�UHPDLQ�H[HUFLVDEOH�
ZLWKLQ����GD\V�RI�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�EHFRPLQJ�D�EDG�OHDYHU��XQOHVV�WKH�%RDUG�LQ�LWV�VROH�DQG�DEVROXWH�
GLVFUHWLRQ�GHWHUPLQHV�RWKHUZLVH���

�� DOO�YHVWHG�UHVWULFWHG�VWRFN�XQLWV�ZKLFK�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�VHWWOHG�ZLOO�EH�LPPHGLDWHO\�VHWWOHG�LQ�SODQ�
VKDUHV��XQOHVV�WKH�%RDUG�LQ�LWV�VROH�DQG�DEVROXWH�GLVFUHWLRQ�GHWHUPLQHV�RWKHUZLVH��DQG�

�� DOO�XQYHVWHG�$ZDUGV�ZLOO�DXWRPDWLFDOO\�EH�IRUIHLWHG�E\�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�IRU�WKH�SD\PHQW�E\�WKH�
&RPSDQ\�WR�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�RI�QRPLQDO�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ���
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$�SDUWLFLSDQW�ZLOO�EH�D��EDG�OHDYHU��LI�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�UHVLJQV��RWKHU�WKDQ�EHFDXVH�WKH\�KDYH�GLHG�RU�
UHVLJQ�GXH�WR�LQFDSDFLW\�DULVLQJ�IURP�VHULRXV�SHUVRQDO�LOOQHVV�RU�LQMXU\���LV�WHUPLQDWHG�IRU�SHUIRUPDQFH�RU�
LV�WHUPLQDWHG�RU�GLVPLVVHG�IRU�PLVFRQGXFW��XQOHVV�GHWHUPLQHG�RWKHUZLVH�E\�WKH�%RDUG�LQ�LWV�VROH�
GLVFUHWLRQ���

�� ,I�D�SDUWLFLSDQW�LV�D��JRRG�OHDYHU���

�� XQOHVV�WKH�%RDUG�GHWHUPLQHV�RWKHUZLVH�DQ\�DQG�DOO�YHVWHG�2SWLRQV�KHOG�E\�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�ZKLFK�
KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�H[HUFLVHG�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�LQ�IRUFH�DQG�UHPDLQ�H[HUFLVDEOH�IRU����PRQWKV���

�� DOO�XQYHVWHG�2SWLRQV�ZLOO�EH�DXWRPDWLFDOO\�IRUIHLWHG�E\�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�IRU�WKH�SD\PHQW�E\�WKH�
&RPSDQ\�WR�WKH�SDUWLFLSDQW�RI�QRPLQDO�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ���

�� DOO�YHVWHG�5HVWULFWHG�6WRFN�8QLWV�ZKLFK�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�VHWWOHG�ZLOO�EH�LPPHGLDWHO\�VHWWOHG�LQ�6KDUHV��
DQG�

�� WKH�%RDUG�PD\�GHWHUPLQH��LQ�LWV�VROH�DQG�DEVROXWH�GLVFUHWLRQ��WKH�PDQQHU�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�XQYHVWHG�
5HVWULFWHG�6WRFN�8QLWV�ZLOO�EH�GHDOW�ZLWK��

$�SDUWLFLSDQW�LV�D��JRRG�OHDYHU��LI�WKH\�DUH�QRW�D��EDG�OHDYHU���

�� 7KH�6,�3ODQ�OLPLWV�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�$ZDUGV�WKDW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�PD\�JUDQW�ZLWKRXW�6KDUHKROGHU�DSSURYDO��
VXFK�WKDW�WKH�VXP�RI�DOO�$ZDUGV�RQ�LVVXH��DVVXPLQJ�DOO�RSWLRQV�DQG�UHVWULFWHG�VWRFN�XQLWV�ZHUH�
H[HUFLVHG��GR�QRW�DW�DQ\�WLPH�H[FHHG�LQ�DJJUHJDWH����RI�WKH�IXOO\�GLOXWHG�VKDUH�FDSLWDO�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�
DV�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�DQ\�SURSRVHG�QHZ�$ZDUGV�LQFOXVLYH�RI�DQ\�2SWLRQV��5HVWULFWHG�6WRFN�8QLWV�RU�VLPLODU�
LQVWUXPHQWV�LVVXHG�XQGHU�DQ\�RWKHU�LQFHQWLYH�SODQ�RSHUDWHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\���

�� 7KH�%RDUG�PD\�GHOHJDWH�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�6,�3ODQ��WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�DQ\�RI�WKHLU�
SRZHUV�RU�GLVFUHWLRQV�XQGHU�WKH�6,�3ODQ��WR�D�FRPPLWWHH�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RU�WR�DQ\�RQH�RU�PRUH�SHUVRQV�
VHOHFWHG�E\�WKHP���

�� 6XEMHFW�WR�WKH�$6;�/LVWLQJ�5XOHV�DQG�WKH�&RQVWLWXWLRQ��WKH�%RDUG�PD\�DW�DQ\�WLPH�DPHQG�WKH�6,�3ODQ�RU�
WKH�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�XSRQ�ZKLFK�$ZDUGV�KDYH�EHHQ�LVVXHG�XQGHU�WKH�6,�3ODQ�SURYLGHG��JHQHUDOO\��
WKDW�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�GRHV�QRW�PDWHULDOO\�UHGXFH�WKH�ULJKWV�RI�DQ\�3DUWLFLSDQW�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�$ZDUGV�
JUDQWHG�WR�WKHP��

�� 7KH�%RDUG�PD\�HOHFW�WR�XVH�DQ�HPSOR\HH�VKDUH�WUXVW�RU�RWKHU�PHFKDQLVP�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�RI�KROGLQJ�
$ZDUGV�IRU�3DUWLFLSDQWV�XQGHU�WKH�3ODQ��DQG�GHOLYHULQJ�3ODQ�6KDUHV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�3DUWLFLSDQWV�XSRQ�
H[HUFLVH�RI�2SWLRQV�DQG�RU�UHVWULFWHG�VWRFN�XQLWV��DV�WKH�FDVH�PD\�EH���

7KHUH�DUH�DOVR�FHUWDLQ�UXOHV�RI�WKH�6,�3ODQ�ZKLFK�DUH�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�$ZDUGV�JUDQWHG�XQGHU�WKH�6,�3ODQ�WR�
SDUWLFLSDQWV�ZKR�DUH�UHVLGHQWV�RI�WKH�86$��³8�6�3HUVRQV´���LQFOXGLQJ�WKDW��

�� $�8�6�3HUVRQ�PD\�RQO\�EH�JUDQWHG�DQ�$ZDUG�LI�WKH\�DUH�D�8�6�HPSOR\HH��FRQVXOWDQW�RU�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�
%RDUG�RI�D�*URXS�HQWLW\��

�� $�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�RQO\�HOLJLEOH�WR�EHFRPH�D�SDUWLFLSDQW�LI�WKH\�DUH�D�QDWXUDO�SHUVRQ�SURYLGLQJ�ERQD�ILGH�
VHUYLFHV�WR�D�*URXS�HQWLW\�DQG�VXFK�VHUYLFHV�DUH�QRW��

�� LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�RIIHU�RU�VDOH�RI�VHFXULWLHV�LQ�D�FDSLWDO�UDLVLQJ�WUDQVDFWLRQ��RU��

�� SHUIRUPHG�WR�GLUHFWO\�RU�LQGLUHFWO\�SURPRWH�RU�PDLQWDLQ�D�PDUNHW�IRU�WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�VHFXULWLHV����

�� 1R�8�6��3HUVRQ�VKDOO�EH�HOLJLEOH�WR�EH�JUDQWHG�DQ�$ZDUG�SULRU�WR�WKH�GDWH�VXFK�SHUVRQ�FRPPHQFHV�
HPSOR\PHQW�RU�RWKHU�SHUVRQDO�VHUYLFH�UHODWLRQVKLS�ZLWK�D�*URXS�HQWLW\��

�� 1R�RSWLRQ�JUDQWHG�WR�DQ�HOLJLEOH�8�6��3HUVRQ�VKDOO�KDYH�DQ�H[HUFLVH�SULFH�WKDW�LV�OHVV�WKDQ������RI�WKH�
IDLU�PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�D�6KDUH�RQ�WKH�GDWH�WKDW�WKH�RSWLRQ�LV�JUDQWHG���

7KH�7XEL�%RDUG�KDV�UHVROYHG�DQG�DGRSWHG�D�SROLF\�WKDW�WKHUH�ZLOO�EH�QR�RSWLRQ�RU�VKDUH�SODQ�LQFHQWLYHV�
DZDUGHG�WR�QRQ�H[HFXWLYH�GLUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��

6HUYLFH�$JUHHPHQWV�

1RQ�([HFXWLYH�6HUYLFH�$JUHHPHQWV�

7KH�%RDUG
V�SROLF\�LV�WR�UHPXQHUDWH�QRQ�H[HFXWLYH�GLUHFWRUV�DW�PDUNHW�UDWHV�IRU�WLPH��FRPPLWPHQW�DQG�
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV��7KH�5HPXQHUDWLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�GHWHUPLQHV�SD\PHQWV�WR�WKH�QRQ�H[HFXWLYH�GLUHFWRUV�DQG�
UHYLHZV�WKHLU�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�DQQXDOO\��EDVHG�RQ�PDUNHW�SUDFWLFH��GXWLHV�DQG�DFFRXQWDELOLW\��,QGHSHQGHQW�
H[WHUQDO�DGYLFH�LV�VRXJKW�ZKHQ�UHTXLUHG��7KH�PD[LPXP�DJJUHJDWH�DPRXQW�RI�IHHV�WKDW�FDQ�EH�SDLG�WR�
QRQ�H[HFXWLYH�GLUHFWRUV�LV�VXEMHFW�WR�DSSURYDO�E\�VKDUHKROGHUV�DW�WKH�$QQXDO�*HQHUDO�0HHWLQJ���7KH�FXUUHQW�
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PD[LPXP�LV�����������

7KH�*URXS�KDV�HQWHUHG�LQWR�DQ�DSSRLQWPHQW�OHWWHU�ZLWK�HDFK�RI�LWV�QRQ�H[HFXWLYH�GLUHFWRUV��7KH�IROORZLQJ�
WDEOH�VHWV�RXW�WKH�QRQ�H[HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRUV¶�DQQXDO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�FRPPHQFLQJ�IURP���-XO\�������1R�IHHV�
ZHUH�SDLG�WR�QRQ�H[HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRUV�SULRU�WR���-XO\�������

'LUHFWRU� .H\�7HUPV�RI�6HUYLFH�$JUHHPHQW�

6LPRQ�%LUG�

&KDLUPDQ�	�
,QGHSHQGHQW�
1RQ�
([HFXWLYH�
'LUHFWRU�

7HUP��

�
5HPXQHUDWLRQ�����

5HQHZHG�D�OHDVW�HYHU\�WKUHH�\HDUV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�&RQVWLWXWLRQ�DQG�$6;�/LVWLQJ�5XOHV��

��������SHU�DQQXP�IRU�VHUYLFHV�DV�&KDLUPDQ�RI�WKH�%RDUG��

�������IRU�VHUYLFHV�DV�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�$XGLW�	�5LVN�
&RPPLWWHH�

�������IRU�VHUYLFHV�DV�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�1RPLQDWLRQV�	�+5�
&RPPLWWHH�

%UHQW�
(PPHWW�

,QGHSHQGHQW�
1RQ�
([HFXWLYH�
'LUHFWRU�

7HUP��

�
5HPXQHUDWLRQ�����

5HQHZHG�D�OHDVW�HYHU\�WKUHH�\HDUV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�&RQVWLWXWLRQ�DQG�$6;�/LVWLQJ�5XOHV��

��������SHU�DQQXP�IRU�VHUYLFHV�DV�D�1RQ�([HFXWLYH�
'LUHFWRU�

��������IRU�VHUYLFHV�DV�D�&KDLU�RI�WKH�$XGLW�	�5LVN�
&RPPLWWHH�

�������IRU�VHUYLFHV�DV�&KDLU�RI�WKH�1RPLQDWLRQV�	�+5�
&RPPLWWHH�
�

$QWKRQ\�
:LOOVDOOHQ�

1RQ�
([HFXWLYH�
'LUHFWRU�

7HUP��

�
5HPXQHUDWLRQ�����

5HQHZHG�D�OHDVW�HYHU\�WKUHH�\HDUV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�&RQVWLWXWLRQ�DQG�$6;�/LVWLQJ�5XOHV��

��������SHU�DQQXP�IRU�VHUYLFHV�DV�D�1RQ�([HFXWLYH�
'LUHFWRU�

�������IRU�VHUYLFHV�DV�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH�

�������IRU�VHUYLFHV�DV�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�+XPDQ�5HVRXUFHV�
&RPPLWWHH�

�
� �
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([HFXWLYH�6HUYLFH�$JUHHPHQWV�

7KH�NH\�WHUPV�FRQFHUQLQJ�WKH�HPSOR\PHQW�RI�H[HFXWLYHV�DUH�VHW�RXW�LQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�WDEOH��

'LUHFWRU� .H\�7HUPV�RI�6HUYLFH�$JUHHPHQW�

0DUFHOOR�5XVVR�

([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�
	�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�
2IILFHU�

0DUFHOOR�5XVVR�LV�HPSOR\HG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LQ�WKH�SRVLWLRQ�RI�
([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�DQG�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU��0DUFHOOR�LV�
HPSOR\HG�RQ�D�IXOO�WLPH�EDVLV�DQG�KLV�IL[HG�DQQXDO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�IRU�
WKH�\HDU�HQGLQJ����'HFHPEHU������LV����������LQFOXVLYH�RI�
VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ�DQG�VXEMHFW�WR�WD[�GHGXFWLRQV��0DUFHOOR¶V�IL[HG�
DQQXDO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�\HDU�FRPPHQFLQJ���-DQXDU\������LV�
���������LQFOXVLYH�RI�VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ�DQG�VXEMHFW�WR�WD[�GHGXFWLRQV��

0DUFHOOR�LV�HOLJLEOH�WR�UHFHLYH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�VKRUW�WHUP�FDVK�
LQFHQWLYHV��

�� IRU�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGLQJ����-XQH�������XS�WR�����RI�KLV�
EDVH�VDODU\��JURVV���VXEMHFW�WR�VDWLVIDFWRU\�DFKLHYHPHQW�RI�
LQGLYLGXDO�DQG�&RPSDQ\�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�DV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�
WKH�&RPSDQ\�LQ�LWV�DEVROXWH�GLVFUHWLRQ��DQG�

�� IURP���-XO\�������HOLJLEOH�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�DQ\�VHQLRU�H[HFXWLYH�
VKRUW�WHUP�LQFHQWLYH�SODQ���

7KH�%RDUG�KDV�UHVROYHG�WR�JUDQW�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�WR�0DUFHOOR�RQ�
RU�DERXW����1RYHPEHU������XQGHU�WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�/RQJ�7HUP�
,QFHQWLYH��/7,��3ODQ��7KH�DJJUHJDWH�QXPEHU�RI�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�
WR�EH�JUDQWHG�ZLOO�FDOFXODWHG�E\�GLYLGLQJ����������E\�WKH�9:$3�RI�
WKH�6KDUHV�RYHU�WKH�ILYH�WUDGLQJ�GD\V�LPPHGLDWHO\�SULRU�WR����
1RYHPEHU�������7KH�YHVWLQJ�FRQGLWLRQV��SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�DQG�
JHQHUDO�WHUPV�RI�WKH�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�DUH�VXPPDULVHG�XQGHU�WKH�
KHDGLQJ�³6KDUH�%DVHG�&RPSHQVDWLRQ´�EHORZ��

0DUFHOOR
V�HPSOR\PHQW�FRQWUDFW�FRQWDLQV�H[SUHVV�SURYLVLRQV�
SURWHFWLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�FRQILGHQWLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�LQWHOOHFWXDO�
SURSHUW\��0DUFHOOR
V�HPSOR\PHQW�FRQWUDFW�FRQWDLQV�PXWXDO�QRQ�
GLVSDUDJHPHQW�REOLJDWLRQV�ZKLFK�VXUYLYH�WKH�WHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�
HPSOR\PHQW���

8QGHU�WKH�WHUPV�RI�0DUFHOOR
V�HPSOR\PHQW�FRQWUDFW��HLWKHU�SDUW\�LV�
HQWLWOHG�WR�WHUPLQDWH�0DUFHOOR
V�HPSOR\PHQW�E\�JLYLQJ�VL[�PRQWKV
�
ZULWWHQ�QRWLFH���

$IWHU�WHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�HPSOR\PHQW��WKH�HPSOR\PHQW�FRQWUDFW�SURYLGHV�
WKDW�0DUFHOOR�ZLOO�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�QRQ�FRPSHWH�DQG�QRQ�VROLFLWDWLRQ�RI�
HPSOR\HH�UHVWULFWLRQV�IRU�D�SHULRG�RI����PRQWKV�IROORZLQJ�WKH�
WHUPLQDWLRQ�RU�FHVVDWLRQ�RI�HPSOR\PHQW��

$ULHO�6LYLNRIVN\�

&RPSDQ\�
6HFUHWDU\�	�&KLHI�
)LQDQFLDO�2IILFHU�

$ULHO�6LYLNRIVN\�LV�HPSOR\HG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LQ�WKH�SRVLWLRQ�RI�
&RPSDQ\�6HFUHWDU\�DQG�&KLHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IILFHU��$ULHO�LV�HPSOR\HG�
RQ�D�IXOO�WLPH�EDVLV�DQG�KLV�IL[HG�DQQXDO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�WR����-XQH�
�����LV����������SHU�DQQXP�LQFOXVLYH�RI�VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ�DQG�
VXEMHFW�WR�WD[�GHGXFWLRQV��,Q�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKLV�EDVH�VDODU\�WKH�
&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�SD\�KHDOWK�LQVXUDQFH�FRVWV�XS�WR�D�PD[LPXP�RI�
�������SHU�DQQXP���

$ULHO�LV�HOLJLEOH�WR�UHFHLYH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�VKRUW�WHUP�FDVK�LQFHQWLYHV��

�� IRU�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU�HQGLQJ����-XQH����������RI�KLV�EDVH�
VDODU\��JURVV��VXEMHFW�WR�VDWLVIDFWRU\�DFKLHYHPHQW�RI�LQGLYLGXDO�
DQG�&RPSDQ\�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�DV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�
&RPSDQ\�LQ�LWV�DEVROXWH�GLVFUHWLRQ��DQG�

�� IURP���-XO\�������HOLJLEOH�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�DQ\�VHQLRU�H[HFXWLYH�
VKRUW�WHUP�LQFHQWLYH�SODQ��
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'LUHFWRU� .H\�7HUPV�RI�6HUYLFH�$JUHHPHQW�

7KH�%RDUG�KDV�UHVROYHG�WR�DZDUG���PLOOLRQ�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�WR�
$ULHO�LQ�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�MRLQLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\��7KH�YHVWLQJ�FRQGLWLRQV��
SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�DQG�JHQHUDO�WHUPV�RI�WKH�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�
DUH�VXPPDULVHG�XQGHU�WKH�KHDGLQJ�³6KDUH�%DVHG�&RPSHQVDWLRQ´�
EHORZ��

$ULHO
V�HPSOR\PHQW�FRQWUDFW�FRQWDLQV�H[SUHVV�SURYLVLRQV�SURWHFWLQJ�
WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�FRQILGHQWLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�LQWHOOHFWXDO�SURSHUW\��
$ULHO
V�HPSOR\PHQW�FRQWUDFW�FRQWDLQV�PXWXDO�QRQ�GLVSDUDJHPHQW�
REOLJDWLRQV�ZKLFK�VXUYLYH�WKH�WHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�HPSOR\PHQW���

8QGHU�WKH�WHUPV�RI�$ULHO
V�HPSOR\PHQW�FRQWUDFW��HLWKHU�SDUW\�LV�
HQWLWOHG�WR�WHUPLQDWH�$ULHO
V�HPSOR\PHQW�E\�JLYLQJ�VL[�PRQWKV
�
ZULWWHQ�QRWLFH���

$IWHU�WHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�HPSOR\PHQW��WKH�HPSOR\PHQW�FRQWUDFW�SURYLGHV�
WKDW�$ULHO�ZLOO�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�QRQ�FRPSHWH�DQG�QRQ�VROLFLWDWLRQ�RI�
HPSOR\HH�UHVWULFWLRQV�IRU�D�SHULRG�RI����PRQWKV�IROORZLQJ�WKH�
WHUPLQDWLRQ�RU�FHVVDWLRQ�RI�HPSOR\PHQW��

�
� �
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'HWDLOV�RI�5HPXQHUDWLRQ�

'HWDLOV�RI�WKH�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�RI�.03�RI�WKH�*URXS�DUH�VHW�RXW�LQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�WDEOHV��

�

�

�

6KDUH�%DVHG�3D\PHQWV�

7KH�DFFRXQWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�UHTXLUH�VKDUH�EDVHG�SD\PHQWV�H[SHQVH�WR�EH�FDOFXODWHG�XVLQJ�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�
WKH�VKDUHV�DW�JUDQW�GDWH��DPRUWLVHG�RYHU�WKH�UHOHYDQW�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�VHUYLFH�SHULRG��)<���VKDUH�EDVHG�
SD\PHQWV�LQFOXGHV�WKH�/7,�SODQ�DQG�UHSUHVHQWV�WKH�)<���SRUWLRQ�RI�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�ULJKWV�JUDQWHG�LQ�)<����
'XULQJ�)<����WKH�*URXS�GLG�QRW�JUDQW�DQ\�IXUWKHU�VKDUH�EDVHG�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�WR�.03V��LQVWHDG�VKDUH�EDVHG�
FRPSHQVDWLRQ�JUDQWHG�WR�SUHYLRXV�.03V�KDYH�EHHQ�IRUIHLWHG�GXH�WR�UHVLJQDWLRQV��7KHVH�ZHUH��

x� ����������RSWLRQV�SUHYLRXVO\�JUDQWHG��LQ�)<����WR�-HIIHU\�6KRUWHU�±�IRUIHLWHG�XSRQ�UHVLJQDWLRQ�
ZLWKRXW�YHVWLQJ��

x� ����������7HQXUH�5HVWULFWHG�6WRFN�8QLWV�SUHYLRXVO\�JUDQWHG��LQ�)<����WR�-HIIHU\�6KRUWHU���IRUIHLWHG�
XSRQ�UHVLJQDWLRQ�ZLWKRXW�YHVWLQJ��

WŽƐƚ�

ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�

�ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ

>ŽŶŐͲ

ƚĞƌŵ�

�ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ

^ŚĂƌĞͲ

ďĂƐĞĚ�

ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ

�ĂƐŚ�^ĂůĂƌŝĞƐ͕�

&ĞĞƐ�Θ�

�ŽŶƵƐĞƐ

�ŶŶƵĂů�

>ĞĂǀĞ�

�ĐĐƌƵĞĚ

EŽŶͲ

ŵŽŶĞƚĂƌǇ

^ƵƉĞƌͲ

ĂŶŶƵĂƚŝŽŶ

>ŽŶŐ�

^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�

>ĞĂǀĞ

�ƋƵŝƚǇ�

^ĞƚƚůĞĚ

ϮϬϮϬ

�ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ͗

^ŝŵŽŶ��ŝƌĚ Ϯϳ͕ϰϰϳ�������������� Ͳ Ͳ Ϯ͕ϲϬϳ������������� Ͳ Ͳ ϯϬ͕Ϭϱϰ�������

DŝĐŚĂĞů�dŝůůĞǇ Ϯϴ͕ϱϰϬ�������������� Ͳ Ͳ Ϯ͕ϳϭϭ������������� Ͳ Ͳ ϯϭ͕Ϯϱϭ�������

DĂƌĐĞůůŽ�ZƵƐƐŽ ϯϬϯ͕ϰϰϯ����������� ϭϳ͕ϳϯϰ������ Ͳ ϮϮ͕ϱϱϳ���������� ϱ͕ϰϵϬ������ Ͳ ϯϰϵ͕ϮϮϰ�����

:ĞĨĨƌĞǇ�^ŚŽƌƚĞƌ ϯϮϬ͕ϳϱϵ����������� Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ ϯϮϬ͕ϳϱϵ�����

�ŶƚŚŽŶǇ�tŝůůƐĂůůĞŶ Ϯϭ͕ϴϴϬ�������������� Ͳ Ͳ Ϯ͕Ϭϳϵ������������� Ͳ Ͳ Ϯϯ͕ϵϱϵ�������

�ƌĂŝŐ�>ĂǁŶ Ϯϰ͕ϲϯϵ�������������� Ͳ Ͳ Ϯ͕ϯϰϭ������������� Ͳ Ͳ Ϯϲ͕ϵϳϵ�������

�ƌĞŶƚ��ŵŵĞƚƚ ϰϳ͕ϵϰϱ�������������� Ͳ Ͳ ϰ͕ϱϱϱ������������� Ͳ Ͳ ϱϮ͕ϱϬϬ�������

KƚŚĞƌ�<DW͗

/ĂŶ��ŽĂƚĞƐ ϮϬϯ͕ϳϮϵ����������� Ͳ Ͳ ϭϲ͕ϵϱϮ���������� Ͳ Ͳ ϮϮϬ͕ϲϴϭ�����

�ƌŝĞů�^ŝǀŝŬŽĨƐŬǇ ϳϲ͕ϭϮϲ�������������� ϲ͕ϯϳϱ�������� Ͳ ϳ͕ϭϳϭ������������� Ͳ Ͳ ϴϵ͕ϲϳϮ�������

dŽƚĂů ϭ͕Ϭϱϰ͕ϱϬϴ�������� Ϯϰ͕ϭϬϵ������ Ͳ������������� ϲϬ͕ϵϳϯ���������� ϱ͕ϰϵϬ������ Ͳ�������������� ϭ͕ϭϰϱ͕Ϭϳϵ�

^ŚŽƌƚ�ƚĞƌŵ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ

dŽƚĂů

WŽƐƚ�

ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�

�ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ

>ŽŶŐͲ

ƚĞƌŵ�

�ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ

^ŚĂƌĞͲ

ďĂƐĞĚ�

ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ

�ĂƐŚ�^ĂůĂƌŝĞƐ͕�

&ĞĞƐ�Θ�

�ŽŶƵƐĞƐ

�ŶŶƵĂů�

>ĞĂǀĞ�

�ĐĐƌƵĞĚ

EŽŶͲ

ŵŽŶĞƚĂƌǇ

^ƵƉĞƌͲ

ĂŶŶƵĂƚŝŽŶ

>ŽŶŐ�

^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�

>ĞĂǀĞ

�ƋƵŝƚǇ�

^ĞƚƚůĞĚ

ϮϬϭϵ

�ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ͗

DŝĐŚĂĞů�dŝůůĞǇ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ

DĂƌĐĞůůŽ�ZƵƐƐŽ Ϯϴϱ͕ϰϮϯ����������� ϭϮ͕ϱϴϮ������ Ͳ Ϯϭ͕ϰϭϳ���������� Ϯϭ͕ϳϭϱ���� ϵ͕Ϭϳϵ���������� ϯϱϬ͕Ϯϭϱ�����

:ĞĨĨƌĞǇ�^ŚŽƌƚĞƌ ϮϭϬ͕Ϯϴϯ����������� ϭϰ͕Ϯϯϱ������ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ ϲϰ͕ϱϯϬ������� Ϯϴϵ͕Ϭϰϵ�����

�ŶƚŚŽŶǇ�tŝůůƐĂůůĞŶ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ�������������

�ƌĂŝŐ�>ĂǁŶ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ�������������

�ƌĞŶƚ��ŵŵĞƚƚ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ�������������

�ƌŝĂŶ�sŽǁĞůƐ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ Ͳ�������������

KƚŚĞƌ�<DW͗

/ĂŶ��ŽĂƚĞƐ Ϯϰϰ͕ϴϳϵ����������� ϭϰ͕ϰϳϯ������ Ͳ ϭϵ͕ϱϮϭ���������� ϭ͕ϳϭϱ������ ϳ͕ϱϲϱ���������� Ϯϴϴ͕ϭϱϰ�����

dŽƚĂů ϳϰϬ͕ϱϴϱ����������� ϰϭ͕ϮϵϬ������ Ͳ������������� ϰϬ͕ϵϯϴ���������� Ϯϯ͕ϰϯϬ��� ϴϭ͕ϭϳϰ������� ϵϮϳ͕ϰϭϴ�����

^ŚŽƌƚ�ƚĞƌŵ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ

dŽƚĂů
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x� 86'���������3HUIRUPDQFH�5HVWULFWHG�6WRFN�8QLWV�SUHYLRXVO\�JUDQWHG��LQ�)<����WR�-HIIHU\�6KRUWHU���
IRUIHLWHG�XSRQ�UHVLJQDWLRQ�ZLWKRXW�YHVWLQJ��DQG�

x� $8'���������3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�SUHYLRXVO\�JUDQWHG��LQ�)<����WR�,DQ�&RDWHV���IRUIHLWHG�XSRQ�
UHVLJQDWLRQ�ZLWKRXW�YHVWLQJ��

3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�

'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU��WKH�%RDUG�UHVROYHG�WR�JUDQW�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�WR�0DUFHOOR�5XVVR�RQ�RU�DERXW����
1RYHPEHU�������7KH�DJJUHJDWH�QXPEHU�RI�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�WR�EH�JUDQWHG�ZLOO�EH�FDOFXODWHG�E\�GLYLGLQJ�
WKH�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�DZDUG��$���������LQ�WKH�FDVH�RI�0DUFHOOR�5XVVR��E\�WKH�9:$3�RI�WKH�*URXS¶V�VKDUHV�
RYHU�WKH�ILYH�WUDGLQJ�GD\V�LPPHGLDWHO\�SULRU�WR����1RYHPEHU�������

7KH�IROORZLQJ�WHUPV�DSSO\�WR�WKH�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV��

7HUP� 'HWDLOV�

([SLU\�'DWH� ���$XJXVW������

9HVWLQJ� 2Q�VDWLVIDFWLRQ�RI�WKH�YHVWLQJ�FRQGLWLRQV�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV��
3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�ZLOO�DXWRPDWLFDOO\�FRQYHUW�LQWR�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�*URXS��
0DUFHOOR�5XVVR¶V�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�PD\�EH�FDVK�VHWWOHG�DW�WKH�
GLVFUHWLRQ�RI�WKH�%RDUG��

3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�KDYH�D�QLO�H[HUFLVH�SULFH�DQG�QR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�LV�
SD\DEOH�E\�WKH�KROGHU�RI�WKH�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�RQ�YHVWLQJ��

9HVWLQJ�'DWHV� 7KH�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�YHVW��VXEMHFW�WR�VDWLVIDFWLRQ�RI�WKH�YHVWLQJ�
FRQGLWLRQV�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV��DV�IROORZV��

9HVWLQJ�'DWH� ��

���$XJXVW������ ��������

���$XJXVW������ ��������

���$XJXVW������ ��������

7RWDO� ���������
�

9HVWLQJ�
&RQGLWLRQV�

+ROGHUV�RI�WKH�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�PXVW�EH�DQ�HPSOR\HH�RI�7XEL�/LPLWHG�
DV�DW�WKH�DSSOLFDEOH�YHVWLQJ�GDWH��

3HUIRUPDQFH�
+XUGOHV�

7KH�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�IRU�HDFK�WUDQFKH�RI�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�DUH��

�� SRVLWLYH�WRWDO�VKDUHKROGHU�UHWXUQ�GXULQJ�WKH�SULRU�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU��DQG�

�� ����SHU�DQQXP�JURZWK�LQ�HDUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH�LQ�WKH�SULRU�ILQDQFLDO�
\HDU��

5ROORYHU� ,I�ERWK�WKH�YHVWLQJ�FRQGLWLRQ�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�DUH�QRW�VDWLVILHG��
WKH�UHOHYDQW�WUDQFKH�RI�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�ZLOO�EH�DGGHG�WR�WKH�
LPPHGLDWHO\�VXEVHTXHQW�WUDQFKH�DQG�WKH�UHOHYDQW�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOH�ZLOO�
EH�DGGHG�WR�WKH�LPPHGLDWHO\�VXEVHTXHQW�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOH��,I�ERWK�WKH�
YHVWLQJ�FRQGLWLRQ�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�KXUGOHV�DUH�QRW�VDWLVILHG�E\�WKH�WKLUG�
DQG�ILQDO�WUDQFKH��DOO�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�ZLOO�DXWRPDWLFDOO\�ODSVH��

/LVWLQJ� 7KH�3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV�DUH�QRW�OLVWHG�RQ�WKH�$6;�RU�DQ\�RWKHU�OLVWLQJ�
DXWKRULW\��VWRFN�H[FKDQJH�RU�PDUNHW��

7UDQVIHU� 7KH�3568V�PD\�RQO\�EH�WUDQVIHUUHG�ZLWK�WKH�SULRU�FRQVHQW�RI�WKH�%RDUG�
RU�E\�IRUFH�RI�ODZ��

�

$GGLWLRQDOO\��DV�SHU�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�HPSOR\PHQW�FRQWUDFW��$ULHO�6LYLNRIVN\�LV�WR�EH�DZDUGHG���PLOOLRQ�
3HUIRUPDQFH�5LJKWV���ULJKWV�WR���PLOOLRQ�VKDUHV��LQ�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�KLV�DJUHHPHQW�WR�MRLQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\��7KH�
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DZDUG�RI���PLOOLRQ�SHUIRUPDQFH�ULJKWV�DW�WKH���GD\�YDULDEOH�ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�SULFH�DV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�
WUDGLQJ�RQ�WKH�$6;�XS�XQWLO�WKH�GD\�SULRU�WR�PDNLQJ�WKH�DZDUG��,W�PXVW�EH�QRWHG�WKDW�WKH�DZDUG�GDWH�LV�\HW�WR�
EH�GHWHUPLQHG�EXW�ZLOO�EH�RQ�RU�DERXW����2FWREHU�������

7KH�YHVWLQJ�GDWHV�IRU�WKHVH�ULJKWV�VKDOO�EH�RYHU���HTXDO�WUDQFKHV��WKH�ILUVW�EHLQJ����$XJXVW�������WKH�
VHFRQG�EHLQJ����$XJXVW�������DQG�WKH�ILQDO�WUDQFKH�ZLOO�YHVW�LQ����$XJXVW�������7R�EH�HOLJLEOH�IRU�YHVWLQJ�
$ULHO�PXVW�EH�HPSOR\HG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�QRW�VHUYLQJ�DQ\�SHULRG�RI�QRWLFH�RU�VXVSHQVLRQ�DW�WKH�YHVWLQJ�
GDWH��

$GGLWLRQDO�'LVFORVXUHV�5HODWLQJ�WR�.H\�0DQDJHPHQW�3HUVRQQHO�

2UGLQDU\�6KDUHV�+HOG�E\�.03�

7KH�QXPEHU�RI�2UGLQDU\�6KDUHV�LQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�GXULQJ�WKH������UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�KHOG�E\�HDFK�RI�WKH�
*URXS¶V�NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO��LQFOXGLQJ�WKHLU�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV��LV�VHW�RXW�EHORZ��

�

�

�

�

�

�

,ĞůĚ�Ăƚ �ĐƋƵŝƌĞĚ �ŝƐƉŽƐĞĚ� ,ĞůĚ�Ăƚ �Ɛ�Ă�й�ŽĨ

<DW ϯϬ�:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϭϵ ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ ϯϬ�:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϮϬ KƌĚŝŶĂƌǇ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ

�ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ͗�

DŝĐŚĂĞů�dŝůůĞǇ�ϲ͕ϴ ϭϬϰ͕Ϭϭϰ͕ϵϴϬ�� Ͳ Ͳ ϭϬϰ͕Ϭϭϰ͕ϵϴϬ�� ϰϮ͘ϳϴй

DĂƌĐĞůůŽ�ZƵƐƐŽ�ϵ ϯϱ͕ϳϮϳ͕ϰϮϬ����� Ͳ Ͳ ϯϱ͕ϳϮϳ͕ϰϮϬ����� ϭϰ͘ϲϵй

�ŶƚŚŽŶǇ�tŝůůƐĂůůĞŶ�ϳ͕ϴ ϭϬϰ͕Ϭϭϰ͕ϵϴϬ�� Ͳ Ͳ ϭϬϰ͕Ϭϭϰ͕ϵϴϬ�� ϰϮ͘ϳϴй

�ƌĂŝŐ�>ĂǁŶ�ϭϬ ϭ͕ϵϰϮ͕ϱϬϬ������� Ͳ Ͳ ϭ͕ϵϰϮ͕ϱϬϬ������� Ϭ͘ϴϬй

�ƌĞŶƚ��ŵŵĞƚƚ�ϭϭ ϳϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ���������� Ͳ Ͳ ϳϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ���������� Ϭ͘ϯϭй

KƚŚĞƌ�<DW͗

/ĂŶ��ŽĂƚĞƐ�ϭϮ ϭ͕ϱϱϯ͕ϭϯϬ������� Ͳ ;ϳϱϮ͕ϳϴϲͿ ϴϬϬ͕ϯϰϰ���������� Ϭ͘ϯϯй

KƌĚŝŶĂƌǇ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ

<DW
,ĞůĚ�Ăƚ������������������������������

ϯϬ�:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϭϴ

�ĂƉŝƚĂů��������������

ZĂŝƐŝŶŐ�
ϭ

/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ���������������

^ŚĂƌĞ�^Ɖůŝƚ�
Ϯ

�ŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ���������������

ŽĨ�>ŽĂŶƐ�
ϯ /WK�KĨĨĞƌ�

ϰ ,ĞůĚ�Ăƚ����������������������������

ϯϬ�:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϭϵ

�Ɛ�Ă�й�ŽĨ�

KƌĚŝŶĂƌǇ�

^ŚĂƌĞƐ�
ϱ

�ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ͗

DŝĐŚĂĞů�dŝůůĞǇ�
ϲ͕�ϴ

ϯ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ���������� ϭϬϴ͕ϬϬϬ�������������� ϵϬ͕ϭϯϮ͕ϬϬϬ�������� ϭϬ͕ϳϳϰ͕ϵϴϬ�������� Ͳ����������������������� ϭϬϰ͕Ϭϭϰ͕ϵϴϬ������ ϰϮ͘ϳϴй

DĂƌĐĞůůŽ�ZƵƐƐŽ�
ϵ

Ϯ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ���������� ϳϮ͕ϬϬϬ���������������� ϲϬ͕Ϭϴϴ͕ϬϬϬ�������� Ϯ͕ϯϲϳ͕ϰϮϬ���������� ;�Ϯϴ͕ϴϬϬ͕ϬϬϬͿ ϯϱ͕ϳϮϳ͕ϰϮϬ�������� ϭϰ͘ϲϵй

�ŶƚŚŽŶǇ�tŝůůƐĂůůĞŶ�
ϳ͕�ϴ

ϯ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ���������� ϭϬϴ͕ϬϬϬ�������������� ϵϬ͕ϭϯϮ͕ϬϬϬ�������� ϭϬ͕ϳϳϰ͕ϵϴϬ�������� Ͳ����������������������� ϭϬϰ͕Ϭϭϰ͕ϵϴϬ������ ϰϮ͘ϳϴй

�ƌĂŝŐ�>ĂǁŶ�
ϭϬ

ϲϮ͕ϱϬϬ���������������� Ϯ͕ϮϱϬ������������������� ϭ͕ϴϳϳ͕ϳϱϬ���������� Ͳ����������������������� Ͳ����������������������� ϭ͕ϵϰϮ͕ϱϬϬ���������� Ϭ͘ϴϬй

�ƌĞŶƚ��ŵŵĞƚƚ�
ϭϭ

Ͳ����������������������� Ͳ����������������������� Ͳ����������������������� Ͳ����������������������� ϳϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ�������������� ϳϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ�������������� Ϭ͘ϯϭй

KƚŚĞƌ�<DW͗

/ĂŶ��ŽĂƚĞƐ�
ϭϮ

ϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ���������������� ϭ͕ϳϳϭ������������������� ϭ͕ϱϬϭ͕ϯϱϵ���������� Ͳ����������������������� Ͳ����������������������� ϭ͕ϱϱϯ͕ϭϯϬ���������� Ϭ͘ϲϰй

KƌĚŝŶĂƌǇ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ

ϭ�
KŶ�ϴ�&ĞďƌƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ƚŚĞ ��ŽŵƉĂŶǇ�ƌĂ ŝ ƐĞĚ�Ψϭ͕Ϯϱϵ͕ϭϱϯ�ǀŝĂ �ƚŚĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ŽĨ�ϮϬϴ͕ϰϲϵ�KƌĚŝŶĂ ƌǇ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�Ăƚ�ĂŶ�ŝ ƐƐƵĞ�Ɖƌŝ ĐĞ�ŽĨ�Ψϲ͘Ϭϰ�ƉĞƌ�^ŚĂ ƌĞ͘

ϲ
�ϱϭ͕ϴϴϮ͕ϰϴϬ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ �ĂƌĞ �ŚĞ ůĚ�ďǇ�KǆůĞ ŝŐŚ�WƚǇ�>ƚĚ͕�Ă Ŷ�ĞŶƚŝƚǇ�ĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝ ƚŚ�DŝĐŚĂĞů�dŝ ů ů ĞǇ͘�Kǆů ĞŝŐŚ�WƚǇ�>ƚĚ�ŚĂƐ�Ă �ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ �ϱϮ͕ϭϯϮ͕ϱϬϬ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ �ŚĞ ůĚ�ďǇ�

�Ă ůĚ�,ŝ ůů�YƵĂƌƌǇ�WƚǇ�>ƚĚ͘

ϱ�
�ĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�Ϯϰϯ͕ϭϰϮ͕ϰϬϬ�KƌĚŝŶĂƌǇ�^ŚĂ ƌĞƐ �ŽŶ�ŝ Ɛ ƐƵĞ͘

ϰ�
�Ɛ �ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�/WK�KĨĨĞƌ͕�Ϯϴ͕ϴϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ�^ŚĂ ƌĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƐŽůĚ�ďǇ�Ğǆŝ Ɛƚŝ ŶŐ�ƐŚĂƌĞŚŽů ĚĞƌƐ �Ăƚ�Ă �ƐĂ ůĞ�Ɖƌŝ ĐĞ�ŽĨ�ΨϬ͘ϮϬ�ƉĞƌ�^ŚĂ ƌĞ͘�hŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�KĨĨĞƌ͕��ƌĞŶƚ��ŵŵĞƚƚ�Ă ĐƋƵŝ ƌĞĚ�

ϳϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ�KƌĚŝŶĂƌǇ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ͘

ϯ�
KŶ�Ϯϵ��Ɖƌŝ ů�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ƚŚĞ ��ŽŵƉĂŶǇ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƚĞĚ�ƐŚĂƌĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ �ůŽĂŶƐ �ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵŵ�ŽĨ�ΨϮ͕ϲϮϴ͕ϰϴϯ͘ϲϰ�ŝŶƚŽ�KƌĚŝŶĂ ƌǇ�^ŚĂ ƌĞƐ �Ă ƚ�ĂŶ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�Ɖƌŝ ĐĞ�ŽĨ�ΨϬ͘ϮϬ�ƉĞƌ�^ŚĂ ƌĞ͘

Ϯ�
KŶ�Ϯϵ��Ɖƌŝ ů�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ƚŚĞ ��ŽŵƉĂŶǇ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚŽŽŬ�Ă�ϭ͗ϯϬ�Ɛ ŚĂƌĞ �ƐƉů ŝƚ͘

ϭϬ
�,ĞůĚ�ďǇ��ƌĂ ŝŐ�>ĂǁŶ�ĂŶĚ�:ŽǇ�>ĂǁŶ�ĂƐ �ƚƌƵƐ ƚĞĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�>ĂǁŶ�&ĂŵŝůǇ�^ƵƉĞƌĂŶŶƵĂ ƚŝŽŶ�&ƵŶĚ͘

ϵ
�,ĞůĚ�ďǇ��ŚŝĂ ƌĂ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚŝ ŽŶƐ �WƚǇ�>ƚĚ�ĂƐ �ƚƌƵƐ ƚĞĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ZƵƐƐŽ�&Ăŵŝ ůǇ�dƌƵƐƚ͘�

ϳ
�ϱϮ͕ϭϯϮ͕ϱϬϬ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ �ĂƌĞ �ŚĞ ůĚ�ďǇ��ĂůĚ�,ŝů ů �YƵĂƌƌǇ�WƚǇ�>ƚĚ͕�ĂŶ�ĞŶƚŝ ƚǇ�ĂƐ ƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝ ƚŚ��ŶƚŚŽŶǇ�tŝůů ƐĂ ů ůĞŶ͘��Ăů Ě�,ŝ ů ů �YƵĂ ƌƌǇ�WƚǇ�>ƚĚ�ŚĂ Ɛ �Ă�ƌĞ ůĞǀĂŶƚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐ ƚ�ŝ Ŷ�ƚŚĞ�

ϱϭ͕ϴϮϮ͕ϰϴϬ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ŚĞůĚ�ďǇ�Kǆů ĞŝŐŚ�WƚǇ�>ƚĚ͘

ϴ�
KǆůĞŝŐŚ�WƚǇ�>ƚĚ�ĂŶĚ��Ă ůĚ�,ŝ ů ů �YƵĂƌƌǇ�WƚǇ�>ƚĚ�ĂƌĞ�Ă ƐƐŽĐŝĂ ƚĞƐ ͘

ϭϭ
�,ĞůĚ�ďǇ�s>,�WƚǇ�>ƚĚ͕�ĂŶ�ĞŶƚŝ ƚǇ�ĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝ ƚŚ��ƌĞŶƚ��ŵŵĞƚƚ

ϭϮ
�,ĞůĚ�ďǇ�:ĞĐŬŝ �,ŽůĚŝŶŐƐ �WƚǇ�>ƚĚ�Ă Ɛ �ƚƌƵƐ ƚĞĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƚĞƐ�&Ăŵŝ ůǇ�dƌƵƐ ƚ͘
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.03�5HODWHG�3DUW\�7UDQVDFWLRQV�

'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����-XQH�������WKH�IROORZLQJ�WUDQVDFWLRQV�RFFXUUHG�EHWZHHQ�WKH�*URXS�DQG�LWV�RWKHU�
UHODWHG�SDUWLHV��

x� $V�DW����-XQH�������UHODWHG�SDUW\�ORDQV�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�����������LQFOXGLQJ�DFFUXHG�LQWHUHVW�RI������
ZDV�SD\DEOH�E\�WKH�*URXS�WR�HQWLWLHV�UHODWHG�WR�D�FHUWDLQ�'LUHFWRU�DQG�VKDUHKROGHU��7KH�SULQFLSOH�
ORDQ�DQG�LQWHUHVW�ZDV�UHSDLG�LQ�IXOO�LQ�6HSWHPEHU�������
�

x� 'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU�WKH�&RPSDQ\�GHWHUPLQHG�QRW�WR�SURFHHG�ZLWK�WKH�RUGHU�IRU�RQH�RI�IRXU�QHZ�
PDQXIDFWXULQJ�SODQWV�SURSRVHG�IRU�FRPSOHWLRQ�GXULQJ�WKH�FXUUHQW�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU��$�FRPSDQ\�
�+RSHWRXQ�&RUSRUDWLRQ�3W\�/WG���+RSHWRXQ����DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�0U�0LFKDHO�7LOOH\�DQG�0U�$QWKRQ\�
:LOOVDOOHQ�ZKR�ZHUH�ERWK�VXEVWDQWLDO�VKDUHKROGHUV�DQG�GLUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RIIHUHG�WR�
DSSURDFK�WKH�LQGLYLGXDO�FRPSRQHQW�VXSSOLHUV�DQG�VHHN�WR�SODFH�RUGHUV�IRU�WKH�VDPH�FRPSRQHQWV�DV�
WKRVH�FDQFHOOHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�HQWHUHG�LQWR�DQ�/HDVH�$JUHHPHQW�ZLWK�+RSHWRXQ��)XUWKHU�
GHWDLOV�RI�WKH�DUUDQJHPHQW�FDQ�EH�IRXQG�DW�1RWH����E��RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUW��

�ŶĚ�ŽĨ��ƵĚŝƚĞĚ�ZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�
7KLV�GLUHFWRUV¶�UHSRUW��LQFRUSRUDWLQJ�WKH�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�UHSRUW��LV�VLJQHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�D�UHVROXWLRQ�RI�WKH�
%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV��

�

�

'LUHFWRU�������������������������������������������������������������������

�

� ��6LPRQ�%LUG�

�

��

'DWH�����6HSWHPEHU������

�
�
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Corporate Governance Statement

7KH�%RDUG�LV�FRPPLWWHG�WR�DFKLHYLQJ�DQG�GHPRQVWUDWLQJ�WKH�KLJKHVW�VWDQGDUGV�RI�FRUSRUDWH�JRYHUQDQFH��
7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�D�GHWDLOHG�JRYHUQDQFH�IUDPHZRUN���

7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�DGRSWHG�WKH�IRXUWK�HGLWLRQ�RI�WKH�$6;�&RUSRUDWH�*RYHUQDQFH�&RXQFLO¶V�&RUSRUDWH�
*RYHUQDQFH�3ULQFLSOHV�DQG�5HFRPPHQGDWLRQV�ZKLFK�ZDV�UHOHDVHG�E\�WKH�$6;�&RUSRUDWH�*RYHUQDQFH�
&RXQFLO�LQ�)HEUXDU\������DQG�EHFRPH�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�\HDUV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�RU�DIWHU���-DQXDU\������
KRZHYHU�WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�HOHFWHG�WR�DSSO\�HDUO\�DGRSWLRQ��

7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�&RUSRUDWH�*RYHUQDQFH�6WDWHPHQW�LV�FXUUHQW�DW����6HSWHPEHU������DQG�LV�DYDLODEOH�RQ�WKH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�ZHEVLWH�DW�KWWSV���WXELJURXS�FRP�LQYHVWRUV�FRUSRUDWH�JRYHUQDQFH����
�
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Tubi Limited 
ABN: 25 139 142 493 

Auditor’s Independence Declaration under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 

In accordance with the requirements of section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, as lead auditor for 
the audit of Tubi Limited for the year ended 30 June 2020, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge 
and belief, there have been: 

(i) No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

(ii) No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

PKF 

SCOTT TOBUTT 
PARTNER 

30  SEPTEMBER 2020 
SYDNEY, NSW 

PKF(NS) Audit & Assurance Limited Partnership is a member firm of the PKF International Limited family of legally independent firms and does not 
accept any responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions of any individual member or correspondent firm or firms.
For office locations visit www.pkf.com.au

Sydney

Level 8, 1 O’Connell Street
Sydney NSW 2000 Australia�  
GPO Box 5446 Sydney NSW 2001�

p	 +61 2 8346 6000�� 
f	 +61 2 8346 6099

PKF(NS) Audit & Assurance Limited 
Partnership
ABN 91 850 861 839

Liability limited by a scheme 
approved under Professional 
Standards Legislation

Newcastle

755 Hunter Street�  
Newcastle West NSW 2302 Australia�  
PO Box 2368 Dangar NSW 2309

p	 +61 2 4962 2688 
f	 +61 2 4962 3245
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ABN: 25 139 142 493

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note

2020

$

2019

$

Revenue 5 20,811,108 31,563,749

Other income 5 651,527 117,059

Raw materials and consumables used (23,051,888) (25,902,032)

Employee benefits expense (706,820) (626,368)

Depreciation and amortisation expense (1,306,455) (1,019,454)

Travel and accommodation (407,765) (290,072)

Repairs and maintenance (180,364) (40,893)

Legal and professional (346,981) (1,220,195)

Consultancy (269,679) (157,261)

Rental expense (17,368) (29,406)

Insurance (85,956) (27,133)

Other operating expenses (745,650) (234,006)

Finance expenses 6 (28,445) (9,683)

(Loss) / Profit before income tax 7 (5,684,736) 2,124,305

Income tax expense 8 1,016,863 (625,252)

(Loss) / Profit for the year (4,667,873) 1,499,053

Items that will be reclassified to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met

Exchange differences on translating foreign
controlled entities 91,184 57,777

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 91,184 57,777

Total comprehensive income for the year (4,576,689) 1,556,830

(Loss) / Profit attributable to:

Members of the parent entity (4,667,873) 1,499,053

Total comprehensive (loss) / income
attributable to:

Members of the parent entity (4,576,689) 1,556,830

Earnings per share

From continuing operations:

Basic earnings per share (cents) 22 (1.92) 0.80

Diluted earnings per share (cents) 22 (1.89) 0.80

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABN: 25 139 142 493

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As At 30 June 2020

Note

2020

$

2019

$

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 10 776,092 7,605,594

Trade and other receivables 11 1,792,104 3,623,199

Inventories 12 2,669,132 1,593,012

Other assets 15 22,686 23,143

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 5,260,014 12,844,948

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 13 19,746,630 16,814,696

Deferred tax assets 25 1,402,646 227,337

Intangible assets 14 307,987 275,223

Right-of-use assets 16 807,087 -

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 22,264,350 17,317,256

TOTAL ASSETS 27,524,364 30,162,204

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 17 6,747,172 5,641,538

Borrowings 18 200,575 140,395

Current tax liabilities 25 455,741 597,855

Lease liabilities 16 67,713 -

Employee benefits 19 198,754 187,494

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,669,955 6,567,282

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liabilities 25 2,076,006 1,966,825

Lease liabilities 16 744,619 -

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,820,625 1,966,825

TOTAL LIABILITIES 10,490,580 8,534,107

NET ASSETS 17,033,784 21,628,097

EQUITY

Issued capital 20 18,042,218 18,042,218

Reserves 21 265,205 191,645

Retained earnings (1,273,639) 3,394,234

Total equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company 17,033,784 21,628,097

TOTAL EQUITY 17,033,784 21,628,097

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABN: 25 139 142 493

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2020

Note

Ordinary
Shares

$

Retained
Earnings

$

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Reserve

$

Share Based
Payments
Reserve

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2019 18,042,218 3,394,234 110,471 81,174 21,628,097

Loss attributable to members of the parent
entity

- (4,667,873) - -
(4,667,873)

Total other comprehensive income for the
year

- - 91,184 -
91,184

Total comprehensive income for the year - (4,667,873) 91,184 - (4,576,689)

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

Contribution of equity, net of transaction
costs

20(a) - - - -
-

Share based payment transactions 33 - - - (17,624) (17,624)

Balance at 30 June 2020 18,042,218 (1,273,639) 201,655 63,550 17,033,784

2019

Note

Ordinary
Shares

$

Retained
Earnings

$

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Reserve

$

Share Based
Payments
Reserve

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2018 4,838,823 1,895,181 52,694 - 6,786,698

Profit attributable to members of the parent
entity

- 1,499,053 - -
1,499,053

Total other comprehensive income for the
year

- - 57,777 -
57,777

Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,499,053 57,777 - 1,556,830

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners

Contribution of equity, net of transaction
costs

20(a) 13,203,395 - - -
13,203,395

Share based payment transactions 33 - - - 81,174 81,174

Balance at 30 June 2019 18,042,218 3,394,234 110,471 81,174 21,628,097

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABN: 25 139 142 493

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note

2020

$

2019

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers 19,067,773 33,864,232

Payments to suppliers and employees (21,906,313) (31,122,037)

Interest received 16,676 43,575

Interest paid (20,989) (10,264)

Income taxes paid (191,379) (175,436)

Receipt from grants 319,848 -

Net cash (used in) / provided by operating activities 32 (2,714,384) 2,600,070

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 7,876,310 129,943

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (12,055,376) (9,334,574)

Purchase of intangble assets (56,995) (36,044)

Net cash used in investing activities (4,236,061) (9,240,675)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issue of shares - 10,574,911

Proceeds from borrowings 200,000 -

Repayment of borrowings (140,395) (77,293)

Repayment of lease liabilities (29,846) -

Net cash provided by financing activities 29,759 10,497,618

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 91,184 57,777

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents held (6,829,502) 3,914,790

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 7,605,594 3,690,804

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 10 776,092 7,605,594

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABN: 25 139 142 493

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

The consolidated financial report covers Tubi Limited and its controlled entities ('the Group'). Tubi Limited is a for-profit
Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

Each of the entities within the Group prepare their financial statements based on the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (functional currency).  The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Australian dollars which is the parent entity’s functional and presentation currency.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors on 30 September 2020.

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with the
Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001.

These financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board.

2 Change in Accounting Policy

Leases - Adoption of AASB 16

The Group has adopted AASB 16 Leases using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method from 1 July
2019 and therefore the comparative information for the year ended 30 June 2019 has not been restated and has been
prepared in accordance with AASB 117 Leases and associated Accounting Interpretations.

Impact of adoption of AASB 16

Under AASB 117, the Group assessed whether leases were operating or finance leases based on its assessment of
whether the significant risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to the Group or remained with the lessor.
Under AASB 16, there is no differentiation between finance and operating leases for the lessee and therefore all
leases which meet the definition of a lease are recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position (except
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets).

The Group has elected to use the exception to lease accounting for short-term leases and leases of low value assets,
and the lease expense relating to these leases are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight line basis.

Practical expedients used on transition

AASB 16 includes a number of practical expedients which can be used on transition, the Group has used the following
expedients:

 contracts which had previously been assessed as not containing leases under AASB 117 were not re-assessed

on transition to AASB 16;

 lease liabilities have been discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019;

 right-of-use assets at 1 July 2019 have been measured at an amount equal to the lease liability adjusted by the

amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2 Change in Accounting Policy continued

Leases - Adoption of AASB 16 continued

Impact of adoption of AASB 16 continued

 a single discount rate was applied to all leases with similar characteristics;

 the right-of-use asset was adjusted by the existing onerous lease provision (where relevant) at 30 June 2019

rather than perform impairment testing of the right-of-use asset;

 excluded leases with an expiry date prior to 30 June 2020 from the consolidated statement of financial position

and lease expenses for these leases have been recorded on a straight-line basis over the remaining term;

 used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the

lease;

 for leases which were classified as finance leases under AASB 117, the carrying amount of the right-of-use

asset and the lease liability at 1 July 2019 are the same value as the leased asset and liability on 30 June 2019.

Financial statement impact of adoption of AASB 16

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets of $Niland lease liabilities of $Nil at 1 July 2019, for leases previously
classified as operating leases. Refer to Note 16 for details of new leases entered into during the year and recognised
under the provisions of AASB 16.

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis for consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial position and performance of controlled entities from
the date on which control is obtained until the date that control is lost. 

Intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cashflows relating to transactions between entities
in the consolidated entity have been eliminated in full for the purpose of these financial statements.

Appropriate adjustments have been made to a controlled entity’s financial position, performance and cash flows
where the accounting policies used by that entity were different from those adopted by the consolidated entity.
All controlled entities have a June financial year end.

A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 29 to the financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the parent has control.  Control is established when the parent is
exposed to, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(b) Income Tax

The tax expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
comprises current income tax expense plus deferred tax expense.

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (loss) for the
year and is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Current
tax liabilities (assets) are measured at the amounts expected to be paid to (recovered from) the relevant
taxation authority.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences which are determined by comparing the carrying amounts of
tax bases of assets and liabilities to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. 

Deferred tax is not provided for the following:

 The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the

time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

 Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

 Temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities to

the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is

probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
losses can be utilised. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period
except where the tax arises from a transaction which is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, in
which case the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity respectively.

(c) Leases

For comparative year

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but
not the legal ownership that are transferred to entities in the Group, are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts equal to the fair
value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed
residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest
expense for the period.

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the lessor,
are charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(c) Leases continued

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease term.

For current year

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a lease exists - i.e. does the contract convey the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

This involves an assessment of whether:

 The contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be explicitly or implicitly identified within

the agreement.  If the supplier has a substantive substitution right then there is no identified asset.

 The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset

throughout the period of use.

 The Group has the right to direct the use of the asset i.e. decision making rights in relation to changing

how and for what purpose the asset is used.

At the lease commencement, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the
lease term.  The lease term includes extension periods where the Group believes it is reasonably certain that
the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises of the
lease liability, initial direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight line basis and assessed for impairment
in accordance with the impairment of assets accounting policy.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement of the lease.  The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be
readily determined then the Group's incremental borrowing rate is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method.  The lease liability is remeasured whether there is a lease modification, change in estimate of the
lease term or index upon which the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI) or a change in the Group's
assessment of lease term.

Where the lease liability is remeasured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the remeasurement or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Exceptions to lease accounting

The Group has elected to apply the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a
term of less than or equal to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets.  The Group recognises the payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(d) Revenue and other income

Revenue from contracts with customers

The core principle of AASB 15 is that revenue is recognised on a basis that reflects the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in
exchange for those goods or services.  Revenue is recognised by applying a five-step model as follows:

1. Identify the contract with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligations

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognise revenue as and when control of the performance obligations is transferred

Specific revenue streams

Sale of goods - manufacture of HDPE pipe

The  principal revenue stream of the Group is the operation of Mobile Plants to manufacture High Density
Polyethylene (HDPE) pipes for industrial projects. Revenue is recognised upon successful delivery of
manufactured pipes under the terms of the contract over the project term, being the point at which the
performance obligation has been met under the terms of the contract with customers.

Sale of equipment - construction and sale of Mobile Plants

Revenue from the sale of equipment represents the construction and sale of Mobile Plants used in the
manufacture of HDPE pipes for industrial use. Revenue is recognised on completion of the performance
obligations and when control of the performance obligations relating to the equipment is transferred to the
customer.

Other income

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Group is entitled to it.

(e) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(f) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(f) Goods and services tax (GST) continued

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component
of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost of inventory is determined using
the first-in-first-out basis and is net of any rebates and discounts received.  Net realisable value is estimated
using the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date and inventory is written down through an
obsolescence provision if necessary.

(h) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment are measured using the cost model.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment  is depreciated on a straight-line or reducing balance basis (as appropriate) over
the assets useful life to the Group, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Fixed asset class Depreciation rate

Capital Works in Progress See below

Plant and Equipment 10 - 20%

Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 20%

Motor Vehicles 25%

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

Capital works in progress relate to the construction of  new mobile manufacturing plants which once completed
and commisioned as ready for use will be transferred to plant and equipment and depreciated in line with the
respective rate above. 

(i) Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Group becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
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(i) Financial instruments continued

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification 

On initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories, those measured at:

 amortised cost

 fair value through profit or loss - FVTPL

 fair value through other comprehensive income - equity instrument (FVOCI - equity)

 fair value through other comprehensive income - debt investments (FVOCI - debt)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:

 the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

 the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash and
cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less provision for impairment.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.  Gain or loss
on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets 

Impairment of financial assets is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis for the following assets:

 financial assets measured at amortised cost
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(i) Financial instruments continued

Financial assets continued

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial assets has increased significant since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort.  This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis
based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking
information.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed by AASB 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision.  To measure the expected credit losses, financial assets
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.  The loss allowance
provision incorporate forward looking information.

Trade receivables

Impairment of trade receivableshave been determined using the simplified approach in AASB 9 which uses an
estimation of lifetime expected credit losses.  The Group has determined the probability of non-payment of the
receivable and multiplied this by the amount of the expected loss arising from default.

The amount of the impairment is recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being recognised in
finance expense.  Once the receivable is determined to be uncollectable then the gross carrying amount is
written off against the associated allowance.

Where the Group renegotiates the terms of trade receivables due from certain customers, the new expected
cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value
is recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Impairment of other financial assets measured at amortised cost are determined using the expected credit loss
model in AASB 9.  On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12
months is recognised.  Where the asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime
losses are estimated and recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabilities of the Group comprise trade payables, bank and other loans and finance lease liabilities.

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period the Group determines whether there is an evidence of an impairment
indicator for non-financial assets.

Where an indicator exists and regardless for goodwill, indefinite life intangible assets and intangible assets not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.
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(j) Impairment of non-financial assets continued

Where assets do not operate independently of other assets, the recoverable amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit (CGU) is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value
in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-
generating unit.

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Reversal indicators are considered in subsequent periods for all assets which have suffered an impairment
loss, except for goodwill.

(k) Intangibles

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are recognised at cost of acquisition. Patents and trademarks have a finite life and are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. Patents and trademarks are
amortised over their useful life of 20 years.

Amortisation

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

(l) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

(m) Employee benefits

Provision is made for the Group's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to
the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within one year have
been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period have been
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In
determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the
employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Cashflows are discounted using market yields on high quality
corporate bond rates incorporating bonds rated AAA or AA by credit agencies, with terms to maturity that match
the expected timing of cashflows. Changes in the measurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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(n) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of
the reporting period.

(o) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the basic earnings per share to take into account the after income tax effect
of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted average
number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

(p) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares
and share options which vest immediately are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

(q) Equity-settled compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based payment employee share and option schemes. The fair value
of the equity to which employees become entitled is measured at grant date and recognised as an expense
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase to an equity account. The fair value of shares is
ascertained as the market bid price. The fair value of options is ascertained using a Black-Scholes pricing
model which incorporates all market vesting conditions. The amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options or shares granted, this expense takes in account any market performance
conditions and the impact of any non-vesting conditions but ignores the effect of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account when considering the number of options expected to vest.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of options which are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. Revisions to the prior period estimate are recognised in
profit or loss and equity.

(r) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the spot rate on the date of the transaction.

At the end of the reporting period:

 Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;

 Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the
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(r) Foreign currency transactions and balances continued

Transaction and balances continued

date of the transaction; and

 Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value are translated using the rate at the date when fair

value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition or in prior reporting periods are
recognised through profit or loss, except where they relate to an item of other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The financial results and position of foreign operations whose functional currency is different from the Group's
presentation currency are translated as follows:

 assets and liabilities are translated at year-end exchange rates prevailing at that reporting date;

 income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the period where the average rate

approximates the rate at the date of the transaction; and

 retained earnings are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations are transferred directly to the Group's foreign
currency translation reserve in the consolidated statement of financial position. These differences are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which the operation is disposed.

(s) Segment reporting

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports to senior management about components of
the Group that are regularly reviewed by senior management who have been identified as the chief operating
decision makers, in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance. Information
reported to senior management for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance is
specifically focused on core products and services offered, comprising one reportable segments as disclosed in
Note 9. 
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(t) Going concern

The financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes continuity of normal business
activities and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. 

The Group has incurred net losses after tax of $4,667,873 (2019: profit of $1,499,053) and net cash outflows of
$6,829,502 (2019: inflows of $3,914,790) for the year ended 30 June 2020. At 30 June 2020, the Group had net
current liabilities of $2,409,941 (2019: net current assets of $6,277,666). The directors have considered the
following factors in their assessment of the going concern basis:

 From the commencement of the year until March 2020 the Group continued to manufacture HDPE pipe

from its Mobile Extrusion Plant in the Permian Basin, Texas, USA for MPS Enterprises, Inc under a

Manufacturing and Supply Agreement. The decline in investment activity in the upstream oil and gas

industry caused by the decline in oil prices led to a reduction in orders, selling prices, exclusivity

restrictions, and margins; 

 The Group also incurred significant operating costs in 1H FY20 due to a series of operator failings,

resulting in approximately six weeks of lost production;

 To mitigate the decline in the Permian Basin and the risks of operations, the Group has invested in an

internal sales team and instigated a change in senior management;

 The Group has further secured customers in new markets in Florida. Through late March to May two plants

were commissioned at a base site leased from a key customer and global miner of phosphate and potash

in Bartow, Florida;

 The Group had cash of $776,092 as at 30 June 2020 and, as disclosed in Note 34, the Group successfully

completed a $6.1m capital raising subsequent to the year end.

Based on the cash flow forecasts prepared by the directors underpinned by the above factors, and having
carefully assessed the likelihood and timing of cash flows from planned operations, the directors are confident
that the Group will be able to fund its activities and be able to pay its debts as they fall due. The directors have
therefore determined the going concern basis as being appropriate in the preparation of this financial report. 

(u) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

The Group has adopted all standards which became effective for the first time at 30 June 2020, the adoption of
these standards has not caused any material adjustments to the reported financial position, performance or
cash flow of the Group or refer to Note 2 for details of the changes due to standards adopted.
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(v) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

The AASB has issued new and amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have mandatory
application dates for future reporting periods. The Group has decided not to early adopt these Standards. The
following table summarises those future requirements, and their impact on the Group where the standard is
relevant:

Standard Name
Effective date
for entity Requirements Impact

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting
(Conceptual Framework)

1 January
2020

The Conceptual Framework contains
new definition and recognition
criteria as well as new guidance on
measurement that affects several
Accounting Standards. 

The Group has
determined not to
early adopt this
Standard. The Group
will consider the
revised definitions
included within the
revised Conceptual
Framework,
particularly where the
accounting for an
existing balance has
been developed with
reference to the
previous conceptual
framework. In addition,
any balances or
transactions which
have been taken to
other comprehensive
income will be
reviewed to confirm
that they are permitted
by an accounting
standard.

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
regarding assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

(a) Key estimates - impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the
Group that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed
using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key assumptions.
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(a) Key estimates - impairment of property, plant and equipment continued

If such impairment indicators were to be triggered, management would perform such calculations incorporating
the use of cash flow projections for plant and equipment incorporating growth rates factored into valuation
models for the next five years on the basis of management’s expectations around the Group’s continued ability
to capture market share from competitors. Cash flow growth rates would then also be determined for periods
subsequent to the five year period to reflect historical industry averages. The rates would incorporate an
allowance for inflation. Pre-tax discount rates would be used in all models based on management's assessment
of market factors relevant to the Group's business and industry.

(b) Key estimates - receivables

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that
any of the receivables are impaired. An expected credit loss provision is included for any receivable where the
entire balance is not considered collectible. Refer to Note 11(a) for further details on the determination of the
expected credit loss provision.  

(c) Key judgments - revenue recognition relating to construction and sale of mobile plants

The Group undertakes contracts for the construction and sale of mobile plants and related activities.
Recognition of revenue in relation to these contracts involves determining when all performance conditions and
obligtaions under the terms of the contract have been met, and control over the asset constructed together with
the related benefits have been passed in the entirety to the customer. The assumptions are based on the
information available to management at the reporting date together with formal acceptance being recieved from
the customer that such performance obligations under the terms of the contract have been met. Refer to Note
3(d) for further details of the Group's accounting policy in relation to revenue recognition.

(d) Key judgments - capitalisation of expenditure relating to mobile plants

The Group capitalises expenditure relating to the construction of new mobile manufacturing plants. In
determinig which costs qualify for capitalisation as capital works in progress, the Group determines whether
costs that are directly attributable to the construction of such plant can be measured reliably, and whether
economic benefit from such construction will flow to the Group. Directly attributable costs are those costs that
the Group incurs in bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management. Refer to Note 3(h) for further details of the Group's accounting policy in
relation to capital works in progress.
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(e) Impact of Coronavirus (COVID-19)

Background

The spread of novel coronavirus (COVID-19), a respiratory illness caused by a new virus, was declared a public
health emergency by the World Health Organisation in January 2020 and upgraded to a global pandemic in
March 2020. This pandemic has severely impacted many local economies around the globe. In many countries,
businesses are being forced to cease or limit operations for long or indefinite periods of time. Measures taken
to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing, and closures of non-
essential services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic
slowdown. Global stock markets have also experienced great volatility and a significant weakening.

Governments and central banks have responded with monetary and fiscal interventions to stabilise economic
conditions.

The Group has considered the effects of these events based on the information at the date of issuing this
financial report and potential effects of business and other market volatility in preparing its financial statements. 

Impact and considerations for the financial statements of the Group

The Group has determined that the financial position and performance of the Group will not be significantly or
materially impacted by COVID-19 when considering the nature of the Group's operations, customer and
supplier base, and levels of activity to date.

Production at our base site in Florida is currently classified as an essential service under the COVID-19
restrictions. Tubi is not currently experiencing material operating restrictions in Florida, where the Group's
operations, primarily supplying the mining industry, satisfy the essential services exemptions to business and
social restrictions. Raw materials are delivered to a rail siding close to Tubi's manufacturing site. The
manufacture and supply of raw materials together with other services currently remain active.

Production volumes from both these plants have steadily increased in the last quarter of the year. Production at
the plant located in Odessa, Texas has temporarily been suspended. A decision on whether to keep the plant at
the Odessa location or re-deploy it will be made as different regional markets are evaluated

5 Revenue and Other Income

Revenue from continuing operations

2020

$

2019

$

Revenue from contracts with customers

- Sale of goods 11,448,909 31,563,749

- sale of equipment (a) 9,362,199 -

Total Revenue 20,811,108 31,563,749

39



Tubi Limited

ABN: 25 139 142 493

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

5 Revenue and Other Income continued

2020

$

2019

$

Other Income

- interest 16,102 19,789

- other income 315,577 97,270

- grants (b) 319,848 -

651,527 117,059

(a) Sale of equipment

Sale of equipment represents the supply of Mobile Plant and related equipment (the Plant) in accordance with
the Equipment Purchase Agreement (EPA) with Iplex Pipelines NZ Limited (IPLEX) entered into on 21
December 2018. The construction and assembly of the Plant together with related performance obligations
under the terms of the EPA were completed during the year and revenue has been recognised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. 

(b) Grants

The government grant was received for the US Small Business Administration's Paycheck Protection Program
with the entire amount received being used exclusively for payroll purposes.

6 Finance Income and Expenses

Finance expenses

2020

$

2019

$

Interest expense 20,877 9,683

Foreign currency loss on financial
assets and liabilities 7,568 -

Total finance expenses 28,445 9,683

7 Result for the Year

The result for the year includes the following specific expenses:

2020

$

2019

$

Cost of sales 23,051,888 25,902,032

Other expenses:

Depreciation 1,282,224 1,002,654

Amortisation 24,231 16,800
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(a) The major components of tax expense (income) comprise:

2020

$

2019

$

Current tax expense

Income tax - current period 61,993 609,471

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (1,078,856) 15,781

Total income tax expense (1,016,863) 625,252

(b) Reconciliation of income tax to accounting profit:

2020

$

2019

$

Profit (5,684,736) 2,124,305

Tax %27.50 %27.50

(1,563,302) 584,184

Add:

Tax effect of:

- non-deductible depreciation and
amortisation 486,476 387,509

- share options expensed during
year - 24,352

- non-deductible expenses 320,941 -

(755,885) 996,045

Less:

Tax effect of:

- other (624,892) (80,094)

Recoupment of prior year tax
losses previously not brought to
account - (226,627)

Income tax attributable to the
Group (1,380,777) 689,324

Difference in overseas tax rates 363,914 (64,072)

Income tax expense (1,016,863) 625,252

Weighted average effective tax
rate %(18) %29

The decrease in the weighted average effective consolidated tax rate for 2020 compared to 2019 is primarily as a
result of losses brought to account in 2020 that previously were not recognised in 2019.
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(c) Income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income:

Before-tax
Amount

$

2020

Tax
(Expense)

Benefit

$

Net-of-tax
Amount

$

Before-tax
Amount

$

2019

Tax
(Expense)

Benefit

$

Net-of-tax
Amount

$

Exchange differences on translating
foreign controlled entities 125,771 (34,587) 91,184 79,692 (21,915) 57,777

9 Operating Segments

Segment information

Identification of reportable segments

The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the
Board of Directors (chief operating decision maker) in assessing performance and determining the allocation of
resources.

The Group is managed primarily on the basis of product category and service offerings as the diversification of the
Group's operations inherently have notably different risk profiles and performance assessment criteria. Operating
segments are therefore determined on the same basis.

Reportable segments disclosed are based on aggregating operating segments where the segments are considered to
have similar economic characteristics and are also similar with respect to the following:

 the products sold and/or services provided by the segment;

 the manufacturing process;

 the type or class of customer for the products or services;

 the distribution method; and

 any external regulatory requirements.

Performance is measured based on segment profit before income tax as included in the internal financial reports.

The Group has one reportable segment, being the manufacturing of HDPE pipe and the sale of technology licenses to
manufacture HDPE pipe. The sale of mobile plants is not considered an operating segment based on above and the
Group's accounting polilcy.

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2020

$

2019

$

Cash at bank and in hand 776,092 7,605,594

776,092 7,605,594
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11 Trade and other receivables

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

Trade receivables 1,759,489 2,982,869

Provision for impairment (a) - -

1,759,489 2,982,869

Deposits - 515,928

Other receivables 32,615 98,813

Amounts due from related party 31(b) - 25,589

Total current trade and other
receivables 1,792,104 3,623,199

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term
nature of the balances.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable in the financial
statements.

(a) Impairment of receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed by AASB 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables.  To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The loss allowance provision as at 30 June 2020 is determined as follows, the expected credit losses
incorporate forward looking information.

The Group determines the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
loss (ECL).  The ECL on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default
experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. 

Based on the the Group's historical experience and assessment of these factors, no loss allowance has been
required for the year. 

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. 
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12 Inventories

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

At cost:

Raw materials 2,135,295 1,218,187

Finished goods 533,837 374,825

2,669,132 1,593,012

Write downs of inventories to net realisable value during the year were $ NIL (2019: $ NIL).

13 Property, plant and equipment

Note

2020

$

2019

$

Capital works in progress

At cost (a) 3,229,469 8,453,616

Plant and equipment

At cost 19,048,169 9,662,907

Accumulated depreciation (2,716,218) (1,564,606)

Total plant and equipment 16,331,951 8,098,301

Furniture, fixtures and fittings

At cost 34,240 33,653

Accumulated depreciation (27,233) (18,106)

Total furniture, fixtures and fittings 7,007 15,547

Motor vehicles

At cost 359,098 352,138

Accumulated depreciation (180,895) (104,906)

Total motor vehicles 178,203 247,232

Total property, plant and
equipment (b) 19,746,630 16,814,696

(a) Capital works in progress

Capital works in progress relates to the construction of Tubi's third group owned, mobile manufacturing plant,
Plant 5004 (its fourth plant in operation, as one is currently leased) to be commissioned by the end of FY2021.
Details of the capital commitments in relation to these works are included in Note 23(c).
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13 Property, plant and equipment continued

(b) Movements in carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and
the end of the current financial year:

Capital Works
in Progress

$

Plant and
Equipment

$

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Fittings

$

Motor
Vehicles

$

Total

$

Year ended 30 June 2020

Balance at the beginning of year 8,453,616 8,098,301 15,547 247,232 16,814,696

Additions 3,035,491 9,389,326 - 6,960 12,431,777

Disposals (8,254,651) (17,250) (1,537) - (8,273,438)

Depreciation expense - (1,200,922) (5,549) (75,733) (1,282,204)

Foreign exchange movements (4,987) 62,496 (1,454) (256) 55,799

Balance at the end of the year 3,229,469 16,331,951 7,007 178,203 19,746,630

Capital Works
in Progress

$

Plant and
Equipment

$

Furniture,
Fixtures and

Fittings

$

Motor
Vehicles

$

Total

$

Year ended 30 June 2019

Balance at the beginning of year - 8,292,726 6,375 277,701 8,576,802

Additions 8,453,616 850,057 10,551 20,350 9,334,574

Disposals - (138,902) - - (138,902)

Depreciation expense - (934,967) (1,626) (66,061) (1,002,654)

Foreign exchange movements - 29,387 247 15,242 44,876

Balance at the end of the year 8,453,616 8,098,301 15,547 247,232 16,814,696

During the year, disposal of Capital Works in Progress comprised the following:

- Sale of the Mobile Plant on completion of construction in accordance with the Equipment Purchase
Agreement with Iplex Pipelines NZ Limited. Refer to Note 5 for details of the revenue recognised in
relation to this Plant. Cash flows from the proceeds of this sale have been recognised in receipts from
customers in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows;
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14 Intangible Assets

2020

$

2019

$

Patents and trademarks

Cost 410,649 353,654

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (102,662) (78,431)

Net carrying value 307,987 275,223

Total Intangibles 307,987 275,223

(a) Movements in carrying amounts of intangible assets

Patents and
trademarks

$

Total

$

Year ended 30 June 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year 275,223 275,223

Additions 56,995 56,995

Amortisation (24,231) (24,231)

Closing value at 30 June 2020 307,987 307,987

Patents and
trademarks

$

Total

$

Year ended 30 June 2019

Balance at the beginning of the year 255,979 255,979

Additions 36,044 36,044

Amortisation (16,800) (16,800)

Closing value at 30 June 2019 275,223 275,223

15 Other non-financial assets

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

Prepayments 22,686 23,143
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16 Leases

The Group has applied AASB 16 using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method and therefore the
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under AASB 117 and related
Interpretations.

The Group has leases over land and buildings.

The Group has chosen not to apply AASB 16 to leases of intangible assets.

 Information relating to the leases in place and associated balances and transactions are provided below.

Terms and conditions of leases

This asset and corresponding liability relate to the manufacturing site lease at Batow, Florida. The initial lease term is
for a 2 year period, with an option to extend the lease every 2 years, for 4 additional periods. That is, a rolling two year
lease for 4 additional rollovers, being for a 10 year period.

Right-of-use assets

Buildings

$

Total

$

Year ended 30 June 2020

Balance at beginning of year 842,178 842,178

Depreciation charge (35,091) (35,091)

Balance at end of year 807,087 807,087

Lease liabilities

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below:

< 1 year

$

1 - 5 years

$

> 5 years

$

Total
undiscounted
lease liabilities

$

Lease liabilities
included in this
Consolidated
Statement Of

Financial Position

$

2020

Lease liabilities 67,713 308,183 436,436 812,332 812,332

Extension options

A number of the building leases contain extension options which allow the Group to extend the lease term by up to
twice the original non-cancellable period of the lease.

The Group includes options in the leases to provide flexibility and certainty to the Group operations and reduce costs
of moving premises and the extension options are at the Group's discretion.

At commencement date and each subsequent reporting date, the Group assesses where it is reasonably certain that
the extension options will be exercised.
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16 Leases continued

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income relating to
leases where the Group is a lessee are shown below:

2020

$

2019

$

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (35,091) -

(35,091) -

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2020

$

2019

$

Total cash outflow for leases 29,846 -

17 Trade and Other Payables

2020

$

2019

$

Current

Trade payables 6,240,993 1,540,310

Deposits - 3,798,785

GST payable 11,217 -

Accrued expenses 339,511 276,562

Other payables 155,451 25,881

6,747,172 5,641,538

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days.  The carrying
value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term nature
of the balances.

Deposits relate to payments received in advance for the commissioning of mobile manufacturing plants under the
terms of agreed contracts with customers. These plants are currently under construction and included as capital works
in progress in Property, plant and equipment - refer to Note 13.
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18 Borrowings

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

Unsecured liabilities:

Related party payables 200,575 -

Secured liabilities:

Lease liability secured 23 - 140,395

Total current borrowings 200,575 140,395

Total borrowings 200,575 140,395

(a) Borrowings - related party loans

In June 2020, related party loans amounting to $200,575, including accrued interest of $575, was payable by the
Group to entities related to certain directors and shareholders.

19 Employee Benefits

2020

$

2019

$

Current liabilities

Provision for employee benefits 198,754 187,494

198,754 187,494

20 Issued Capital

2020

$

2019

$

243,142,400 (2019: 243,142,400)
Ordinary shares 18,042,218 18,042,218
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20 Issued Capital continued

(a) Ordinary shares

No. $.

Opening balance at 1 July 2018 5,791,531 4,838,823

19: Rights issue at $6.04 per
share 208,469 1,259,152

Subtotal 6,000,000 6,097,975

Conversion on 1:30 share split 180,000,000 6,097,975

Apr 2019: Issue pre-IPO shares at
$0.20 per share 50,000,000 10,000,000

Apr 2019: Conversion of director
and shareholder loans to shares 13,142,400 2,628,484

Transaction costs - (684,241)

Balance at 30 June 2019 243,142,400 18,042,218

Movement - -

Balance at 30 June 2020 243,142,400 18,042,218

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the
Company. On a show of hands at meetings of the Company, each holder of ordinary shares has one vote in
person or by proxy, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its shares.

(b) Capital Management

The key objectives of the Group when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and maintain optimal benefits to stakeholders. The Group defines capital as its equity and net debt.

There has been no change to capital risk management policies during the year.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes funding decisions based on the prevailing economic
environment and has a number of tools available to manage capital risk. These include maintaining a diversified
debt portfolio, the ability to adjust the size and timing of dividends paid to shareholders and the issue of new
shares.

The Board monitors a range of financial metrics including return on capital employed and gearing ratios. 

21 Reserves

(a) Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign controlled entity are recognised in other
comprehensive income - foreign currency translation reserve. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or
loss when the net investment is disposed of.
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21 Reserves continued

(b) Share based payments reserve

This reserve records the cumulative value of employee service received for the issue of share options. When
the option is exercised the amount in the share option reserve is transferred to share capital.

22 Earnings per Share

(a) Reconciliation of earnings to profit or loss from continuing operations

2020

$

2019

$

(Loss) / Profit from continuing operations (4,667,873) 1,499,053

Earnings used in the calculation of
dilutive EPS from continuing
operations (4,667,873) 1,499,053

(b) Earnings used to calculate overall earnings per share

2020

$

2019

$

Earnings used to calculate overall
earnings per share (4,667,873) 1,499,053

(c) Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year used in calculating basic EPS

2020

No.

2019

No.

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year used
in calculating basic EPS 243,142,423 192,378,671

Weighted average number of dilutive
options outstanding 2,995,890 764,384

Weighted average number of dilutive
restricted share units on issue 998,630 254,795

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year
used in calculating dilutive EPS 247,136,943 193,397,850

23 Capital and Leasing Commitments

(a) Finance Leases

2020

$

2019

$

Minimum lease payments:

- not later than one year - 140,395

Present value of minimum lease
payments - 140,395
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23 Capital and Leasing Commitments continued

(a) Finance Leases continued

Finance leases are in place for plant and equipment and normally have a term between 1 and 2 years. The
leases have terms of renewal but no purchase option or escalation clauses. Renewals are at the option of the
entity holding the lease.

(b) Operating Leases

2020

$

2019

$

Minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases:

- not later than one year - 31,173

Operating leases are in place for plant and equipment and normally have a term between 1 and 2 years.
Lease payments are increased on an annual basis to reflect market rentals.

(c) Contracted Commitments

Contracted commitments for:

Rental of storage facility in US

- not later than one year - 133,138

- between one year and five years - 3,750

- 136,888

Construction of mobile
manufacturing plants

- not later than one year 1,624,462 10,316,735

- between one year and five years - 610,328

Total contracted commitments 1,624,462 11,063,951
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24 Financial Risk Management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its use of financial instruments.

The Group‘s overall risk management plan seeks to minimise potential adverse effects due to the unpredictability of
financial markets.

The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to are described below:

Specific risks

 Credit risk

 Market risk - currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk

Financial instruments used

The principal categories of financial instrument used by the Group are:

 Trade receivables

 Cash at bank

 Trade and other payables

2020

$

2019

$

Financial assets

Held at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents 776,092 7,605,594

Trade and other receivables 1,792,104 3,623,199

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised
cost 7,403,488 6,379,788

Total financial liabilities 7,403,488 6,379,788

Total (4,835,292) 4,849,005

Objectives, policies and processes

The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment of the Group’s financial risk management
framework. This includes the development of policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk and the use of derivatives.

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s
activities.

The day-to-day risk management is carried out by the Group’s finance function under policies and objectives which
have been approved by the Board of Directors.  The Chief Financial Officer has been delegated the authority for
designing and implementing processes which follow the objectives and policies. This includes monitoring the levels of
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24 Financial Risk Management continued

Objectives, policies and processes continued
exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk and assessment of market forecasts for interest rate and
foreign exchange movements.

The Board of Directors receives monthly reports which provide details of the effectiveness of the processes and
policies in place.

Mitigation strategies for specific risks faced are described below:

Credit risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and
financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to wholesale and retail customers, including outstanding receivables
and committed transactions.

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties
are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables consist of a small number of customers, spread across similar industries and geographical areas.
Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable.

The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults. The risk management committee has established a credit policy under which each new
customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Group's standard payment and delivery terms and
conditions are offered. The Group review includes external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit
agency information and industry information. Credit limits are established for each customer and the utilisation of credit
limits by customers is regularly monitored by line management. Customers who subsequently fail to meet their credit
terms are required to make purchases on a prepayment basis until creditworthiness can be re-established.

The Board receives monthly reports summarising the turnover, trade receivables balance and aging profile of each of
the key customers individually and the Group's other customers analysed by industry sector as well as a list of
customers currently transacting on a prepayment basis or who have balances in excess of their credit limits.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However,
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default
risk associated with the industry and country in which the customers operate.

Management considers that all the financial assets that are not impaired for each of the reporting dates under review
are of good credit quality, including those that are past due.

The Group is currently dependent on the credit worthiness of two key customers. In the event that either counterparty
were to fall into bankruptcy, fail financially or otherwise default on its payment obligations to the Group, the Group may
be exposed to significant financial loss both from a failure of that counterparty to pay amounts owing to the Group for
product or plant supplied, and from the failure of that party's ability to meet its contractual obligations to the Group.

On a geographical basis, the Group has significant credit risk exposures in Australia, New Zealand and USA given the

54



Tubi Limited

ABN: 25 139 142 493

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

24 Financial Risk Management continued

Credit risk  continued
location of its operations in those regions.

The following table details the Group's trade and other receivables exposure to credit risk (prior to collateral and other
credit enhancements) with ageing analysis and impairment provided for thereon. Amounts are considered as 'past due'
when the debt has not been settled, within the terms and conditions agreed between the Group and the customer or
counter party to the transaction. Receivables that are past due are assessed for impairment by ascertaining solvency
of the debtors and are provided for where there is objective evidence indicating that the debt may not be fully repaid to
the Group.

The balances of receivables that remain within initial trade terms (as detailed in the table) are considered to be of high
credit quality.

Past due but not impaired

(days overdue)

Gross
amount

$

Past due
and

impaired

$

< 30

$

31-60

$

61-90

$

> 90

$

Within
initial
trade
terms

$

2020

Trade receivables 1,759,489 - 1,759,489 - - - -

Other receivables 32,615 - 32,615 - - - -

Total 1,792,104 - 1,792,104 - - - -

2019

Trade receivables 2,982,869 - 2,964,246 - - 18,623 -

Other receivables 640,330 - 640,330 - - - -

Total 3,623,199 - 3,604,576 - - 18,623 -

The Group does not hold any financial assets with terms that have been renegotiated, but which would otherwise be
past due or impaired.

The other classes of receivables do not contain impaired assets.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Exposure to foreign exchange risk may result in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument fluctuating
due to movement in foreign exchange rates of currencies in which the Group holds financial instruments which are
other than the AUD functional currency of the Group.

Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Group's overseas sales and purchases, which are primarily
denominated in US Dollars (USD) and New Zealand Dollars (NZD). 

To mitigate the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Australian Dollar cash flows are monitored. The Group
aims to hold sufficient cash and cash equivalents in these respective currencies to enable it to carry out its operations
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24 Financial Risk Management continued
and settle amounts primarily in the currency in which the overseas sales and purchases take place. 

Therefore, the Group‘s risk management procedures distinguish short-term foreign currency cash flows (due within 6
months) from longer-term cash flows. Where the amounts to be paid and received in a specific currency are expected
to largely offset one another, no further hedging activity is undertaken. 

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities, translated into Australian Dollars at the closing rate, are
as follows,

2020

USD

$

NZD

$

Total AUD

$

Nominal amounts

Financial assets 2,419,870 257,228 2,677,098

Financial liabilities (7,392,370) (88,231) (7,480,601)

Short-term exposure (4,972,500) 168,997 (4,803,503)

2019

Nominal amounts

Financial assets 3,826,567 281,487 4,108,054

Financial liabilities (1,433,075) (419,537) (1,852,612)

Short-term exposure 2,393,492 (138,050) 2,255,442

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the net result for the year and equity in regards to the Group‘s financial
assets and financial liabilities and the US Dollar  – Australian Dollar exchange rate and New Zealand Dollar –
Australian Dollar exchange rate.  There have been no changes in the assumptions calculating this sensitivity from prior
years.

It assumes a +/- 5% change of the Australian Dollar / USD exchange rate for the year ended 30 June 2020 (30 June
2019: 5%). A +/- 5% change is considered for the Australian Dollar / NZD exchange rate (30 June 2019: 5%). Both of
these percentages have been determined based on the average market volatility in exchange rates in the previous 12
months. 

The year end exchange rate is 0.6863 (2019: 0.7013) for USD and 1.0547 (2019: 1.0424) for NZD.

The sensitivity analysis is based on the foreign currency financial instruments held at the reporting date and also takes
into account forward exchange contracts that offset effects from changes in currency exchange rates.

If the Australian Dollar had strengthened and weakened against the USD and NZD by 5% (30 June 2019: 5%) and 5%
(30 June 2019: 5%) respectively then this would have had the following impact:
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24 Financial Risk Management continued

2020 2019

+5% -5% +5% -5%

USD

Net results (248,625) 248,625 113,411 (113,411)

Equity 248,625 (248,625) (113,411) 113,411

NZD

Net results 8,450 (8,450) 7,364 (7,364)

Equity (8,450) 8,450 (7,364) 7,364

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk.

25 Tax assets and liabilities

(a) Current Tax Liability

2020

$

2019

$

Income tax payable 455,741 597,855

(b) Deferred Tax Assets

Note

Opening
Balance

$

Charged to
Income

$

Charged
directly to

Equity

$

Closing
Balance

$

Deferred tax assets

Provisions - employee benefits - 30,652 - 30,652

Accruals - 16,752 - 16,752

Transaction costs on equity issue - 179,933 - 179,933

Balance at 30 June 2019 - 227,337 - 227,337

Provisions - employee benefits 30,652 674,436 - 705,088

Accruals 16,752 500,873 - 517,625

Transaction costs on equity issue 179,933 - - 179,933

Balance at 30 June 2020 227,337 1,175,309 - 1,402,646
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25 Tax assets and liabilities continued

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities

Opening
Balance

$

Charged to
Income

$

Charged
directly to

Equity

$

Closing
Balance

$

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant & equipment 1,717,694 198,841 - 1,916,535

Other - 50,290 - 50,290

Balance at 30 June 2019 1,717,694 249,131 - 1,966,825

Property, plant & equipment 1,916,535 (191,672) - 1,724,863

Other 50,290 300,853 - 351,143

Balance at 30 June 2020 1,966,825 109,181 - 2,076,006

26 Dividends

There were no dividends paid, recommended or declared during the current or previous financial year.

Franking account

2020

$

2019

$

The franking credits available for
subsequent financial years at a
tax rate of 30% - -

The above available balance is based on the dividend franking account at year-end adjusted for:

(a) Franking credits that will arise from the payment of the current tax liabilities;

(b) Franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the year end;

(c) Franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the end of the year.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group has franking debits amounting $3,070,115 (2019: $2,878,736) arising from R&D tax
offsets. The franking debits will be recouped against future dividends. The ability to use franking credits on future
dividends will only be available once the franking debits have been fully recouped. This is dependent upon the
Company's future ability to declare dividends.
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27 Key Management Personnel Remuneration

Key management personnel remuneration included within employee expenses for the year is shown below:

2020

$

2019

$

Short-term employee benefits 1,078,617 759,229

Long-term benefits 5,490 22,890

Post-employment benefits 60,972 40,938

Share-based payments 9,654 81,174

1,154,733 904,231

28 Auditors' Remuneration

2020

$

2019

$

Remuneration of the auditor PKF,
for:

- auditing or reviewing the
financial statements for the
current year 76,500 48,878

- taxation services - 7,304

- other services - 96,435

Total 76,500 152,617

Other services in prior year relate to advisory services in relation to the initial public offering and listing of Tubi Limited
on the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX).

29 Interests in Subsidiaries

(a) Composition of the Group

Principal place of
business / Country of
Incorporation

Percentage
Owned (%)*

2020

Percentage
Owned (%)*

2019

Subsidiaries:

Tubi USA Inc. USA 100 100

Tubi NZ Limited New Zealand 100 100

*The percentage of ownership interest held is equivalent to the percentage voting rights for all subsidiaries.

The principal activities of both subsidiaries during the year was the development, operation, leasing and sale of
mobile manufacturing plants for the production of high-density polyethylene ("HDPE") pipes for use in the oil
and gas, irrigation, mining and infrastructure sectors. 

30 Contingencies

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company did not have any contingencies at 30 June 2020 .
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31 Related Parties

(a) The Group's main related parties are as follows:

 Key management personnel - refer to Note 27.

 Subsidiaries - refer to Note 29

 Other related parties include close family members of key management personnel and entities that are

controlled or significantly influenced by those key management personnel or their close family members.

(b) Transactions with related parties

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable than
those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

On 1 November 2019 the Company determined not to proceed with the order for one of four new manufacturing
plants proposed for completion during the current financial year.

A company (Hopetoun Corporation Pty Ltd ("Hopetoun")) associated with Mr Michael Tilley and Mr Anthony
Willsallen who were both substantial shareholders and directors of the Company offered to approach the
individual component suppliers and seek to place orders for the same components as those cancelled by the
Company.

These orders were subsequently placed on the understanding that the major component suppliers would refund
to the Company any deposits made for the components. As part of this process Hopetoun also purchased
some miscellaneous parts which the Company had already purchased including electrical wiring, cooling
components and pumps from the Company at the Company's cost and reimbursed the Company for capitalised
design, engineering and other direct costs incurred by the Company. The prices paid for these components and
services were the same as the prices Hopetoun might have acquired them from the original suppliers. The
carrying value of these costs amounted to $850,716 and have been recognised as a disposal of Capital Works
in Progress during the year.

Under the terms of this agreement, Hopetoun entered into a lease arrangement on 1 February 2020 providing
the Company the right to use this plant in its manufacturing operations once constructed for a period of 12
months, for US$1 in rent. Hopetoun has also given the Company an exclusive option until 31st December 2020
to acquire the plant at Hopetoun's cost of construction. The term of the lease is 12 months and has been
accounted for as a short-term lease in accordance with the Accounting Standards. Under the arrangement, the
Company also contributed commissioning costs of AU$333,339 to bring the plant to its current condition and
use. This amount has been capitalised as part of plant and equipment during the year. Hopetoun has also
received unrestricted technology license to operate the plant in any market other than New Zealand upon
completion of the lease term.
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31 Related Parties continued

(c) Loans to/from related parties

Unsecured loans are made to the  subsidiaries, key management personnel and other related parties on an
arm's length basis. Loans are unsecured and repayable in cash.

Opening
balance

$

Closing
balance

$

Interest not
charged

$

Interest
paid/payable

$

Impairment

$

Loans from KMP

2020 - 200,000 - 575 -

2019 473,484 - - - -

Loans from related parties

2019 2,155,000 - - - -

32 Cash Flow Information

(a) Reconciliation of result for the year to cashflows from operating activities

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

2020

$

2019

$

(Loss) / Profit for the year (4,667,873) 1,499,053

Cash flows excluded from profit
attributable to operating activities

Non-cash flows in profit:

 - amortisation 24,231 16,800

 - depreciation 1,282,224 1,002,654

 - share based payments expensed (17,624) 81,174

- other 575 -

Changes in assets and liabilities:

 - (increase)/decrease in trade and
other receivables 1,830,959 (2,270,855)

 - (increase)/decrease in other assets 457 83,041

 - (increase)/decrease in inventories (1,076,120) (1,037,472)

 - (increase)/decrease in deferred tax
asset (1,175,309) (227,337)

 - increase/(decrease) in trade and
other payables 1,105,634 2,760,244

 - (increase)/decrease in other liabilities - (35,917)

 - increase/(decrease) in income taxes
payable (141,979) 428,022

 - increase/(decrease) in deferred tax
liability 109,181 249,131

 - increase/(decrease) in provisions 11,260 51,532

Cashflows from operations (2,714,384) 2,600,070
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33 Share-based Payments

The Company provides benefits to employees (including senior executives) of the Group in the form of share-based
payments whereby employees render services in exchange for options and shares.

At 30 June 2020 the Group has the following share-based payment schemes:

 Australian Long Term Incentive Plan;

 United States Share Incentive Plan;

 Tenure Restricted Stock Units;

 Performance Restricted Stock Units.

(a) Options granted

A summary of the Company options issued is as follows:

2020

Grant Date Expiry Date
Exercise

price

Balance
at start of
the year

Granted
during

the year

Exercised
during

the year

Forfeited
during the

year

Balance
at the end

of the
year

Vested
and

exercisabl
e at the

end of the
year

30 April 2019
30 August
2022 0.20 - 4,500,000 - (4,500,000) - -

The weighted average fair value of the options granted during the year was $ - (2019: $ 0.07). 

(b) Restricted stock units

A summary of the Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) issued is as follows:

  

Note Grant Date
Expiry
Date

Balance at
start of

year

Granted
during the

year

Forfeited
during the

year

Balance at
end of
year

Tenure RSUs          (i)
30 April
2019

30 August
2022 - 1,500,000 (1,500,000) -

Performance RSUs (ii)
30 April
2019

30 August
2022 - - - -

Performance RSUs (iii)

30
November
2019

30 August
2023 - - - -

(i) These Tenure RSUs were forfeited during the year.

(ii) These Performance RSUs were forfeited during the year.

(ii) The Board resolved to grant these Performance RSUs on or about 30 November 2019. The aggregate
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33 Share-based Payments continued

(b) Restricted stock units continued
number of Performance Rights to be granted will be calculated by dividing the amount of the award  by the
VWAP of the Group's shares over the five trading days immediately prior to 30 November 2019.

34 Events Occurring After the Reporting Date

The consolidated financial report was authorised for issue on 30 September 2020 by the board of directors.

1) Subsequent to the year end, the Group successfully completed a $6.1 million capital raising by way of a placement
and accelerated non-renounceable institutional entitlement offer to eligible new investors and existing shareholders.

The capital raising was well supported and sees several new institutions and sophisticated investors joining the
register. All Directors and related parties participated in the capital raising.

Eligible Shareholders also received one free New Option for every three New Shares they subscribe for under the
Entitlement Offer. The New Options are exercisable at $0.15 at any time from the date of issue until 30 June 2022.

2) In September 2020, the related party loan amounting to $200,575 was repaid in full.

Except for the above, no other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which
significantly affected or could significantly affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the
state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.

35 Parent entity

The following information has been extracted from the books and records of the parent, Tubi Limited and has been
prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards.

The financial information for the parent entity, Tubi Limited has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated
consolidated financial statements except as disclosed below.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities are accounted for at cost in the consolidated financial
statements of the parent entity. Dividends received from associates are recognised in the parent entity profit or loss,
rather than being deducted from the carrying amount of these investments.
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35 Parent entity continued

2020

$

2019

$

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Current assets 4,139,363 6,560,376

Non-current assets 15,096,469 15,978,678

Total Assets 19,235,832 22,539,054

Liabilities

Current liabilities 1,374,494 4,795,471

Non-current liabilities 1,941,298 1,728,074

Total Liabilities 3,315,792 6,523,545

Equity

Issued capital 18,042,218 18,042,218

Retained earnings (2,185,728) (2,077,883)

Option reserve 63,550 81,174

Total Equity 15,920,040 16,045,509

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

Total profit or (loss) for the year 107,832 (525,475)

Total comprehensive income 107,832 (525,475)

Contingent liabilities

The parent entity did not have any contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2020 or 30 June 2019.

Contractual commitments

The parent entity had capital commitments for the construction of mobile manufacturing plants amounting to
$1,624,462 as at 30 June 2020 . 

36 Statutory Information

The registered office and principal place of business of the company
is:

Tubi Limited

2 Hopetoun Street

Paddington NSW 2021

Australia
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ABN: 25 139 142 493

Directors' Declaration

The directors of the Company declare that:

1. the consolidated financial statements and notes for the year ended 30 June 2020 are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001 and:

a. comply with Accounting Standards, which, as stated in basis of preparation Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, constitutes explicit and unreserved compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS); and

b. give a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the consolidated group;

2. the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finance Officer have given the declarations required by Section 295A that:

a. the financial records of the Company for the financial year have been properly maintained in accordance with
section 286 of the Corporations Act 2001;

b. the consolidated financial statements and notes for the financial year comply with the Accounting Standards; and

c. the consolidated financial statements and notes for the financial year give a true and fair view.

3. in the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Director ..................................................................

Dated 30 September 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF TUBI LIMITED 

Report on the Financial Report 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Tubi Limited and its controlled entities (the company 
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 
June 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the period then ended, 
notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the 
directors’ declaration of the company and the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it 
controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year. 

In our opinion, the financial report of Tubi Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, 
including: 

i) Giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2020
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

ii) Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section 
of our report.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.  

Independence 

We are independent of the consolidated entity in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of 
the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical 
Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence 
Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

PKF(NS) Audit & Assurance Limited Partnership is a member firm of the PKF International Limited family of legally independent firms and does not 
accept any responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions of any individual member or correspondent firm or firms.
For office locations visit www.pkf.com.au

Sydney

Level 8, 1 O’Connell Street
Sydney NSW 2000 Australia�  
GPO Box 5446 Sydney NSW 2001�

p	 +61 2 8346 6000�� 
f	 +61 2 8346 6099

PKF(NS) Audit & Assurance Limited 
Partnership
ABN 91 850 861 839

Liability limited by a scheme 
approved under Professional 
Standards Legislation

Newcastle

755 Hunter Street�  
Newcastle West NSW 2302 Australia�  
PO Box 2368 Dangar NSW 2309

p	 +61 2 4962 2688 
f	 +61 2 4962 3245
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Key Audit Matters 

A key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgement, was of most significance in our audit of 
the financial report of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in 
that context 

1. Revenue recognition - IPLEX contract

Why significant How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

During the year the Group recognised revenue of 
$9.362m in relation to a stand-alone contract 
with IPLEX for the construction, assembly and 
supply of a Mobile Plant (refer to Note 5).  

Revenue recognition under this particular 
contract involved significant judgement regarding 
the level and timing of revenue and the 
satisfaction of performance obligations under the 
following three key components of the contract: 

- Equipment purchase;
- License of intellectual property; and
- Service contract.
Given the nature of the transaction and degree of 
judgement required in the accounting treatment, 
we consider this be a Key Audit Matter. 

Our work included, but was not limited to, the 
following procedures: 

• Reviewing revenue recognition policy with
reference to AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers.

• Performing detailed assessment in respect of
the 3 components of the IPLEX contract;

• Reviewing management’s assessment of the
IPLEX contract in relation to revenue
recognition under the five step model of AASB
15 and the appropriate accounting treatment;
and

• Vouching sales invoices and amounts
received to bank, and ensuring in accordance
with the agreed terms of the contract.
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Key Audit Matters (cont’d) 

2. Capitalised expenditure

Why significant How our audit addressed the key audit matter 
As disclosed in note 13, the Group has capitalised 
expenditure of $12.432m in the year to 30 June 
2020. 

Capitalised expenditure is predominantly in relation 
to the construction of three new mobile 
manufacturing plants (two of which have been 
commissioned during the year).  

These mobile manufacturing plants represent the 
core assets of the Group. Therefore existence, 
ownership and valuation of capitalised 
expenditure, in accordance with AASB 116 
Property, Plant and Equipment, is materially 
significant for the Group. 

The carrying value of mobile manufacturing plants 
is therefore considered a Key Audit Matter. 

Our work included, but was not limited to, the 
following procedures: 

• reviewing the construction project plans relating
to the mobile manufacturing plants along with
any key assumptions/ judgments made by
management.

• discussing capitalised projects with key
personnel responsible for overseeing the
projects to assess validity of capitalised
expenditure;

• vouching a sample of additions to supporting
purchase invoices and tracing to bank payment
or supplier ledger balance as appropriate;

• vouching a sample of labour costs charged to
the projects for validity, including review of
rationale around calculations and allocation;

• assessing expenditure in line with the
construction project plans to confirm legitimacy
of capital expenses allocated to each plant
project in accordance with AASB 116 Property,
Plant and Equipment;

• assessing work in progress at 30 June 2020
with reference to construction project plans
to determine their continued viability and
tracking to budget. This includes reviewing
progress reports to management and the
Board and related minutes of meetings;

• reviewing the historical accuracy of project plans
with particular attention for any project defaults
or write offs of previously capitalised
expenditure;

• reviewing management’s assessment in relation
to forecasts and sales pipeline in relation to
future utilisation of mobile manufacturing plants;
and

• verifying physical existence of the mobile
manufacturing plants through date stamped
photographs and live video feed from the actual
physical site.

68



Other Information 

Other information is financial and non-financial information in the annual report of the Group which is 
provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor’s Report. The directors are responsible for Other 
Information in the annual report. 

The Other Information we obtained prior to the date of this Auditor’s Report was the Director’s report. The 
remaining Other Information is expected to be made available to us after the date of the Auditor’s Report. 

Our opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, the auditor does 
not and will not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon, with the exception of 
the Remuneration Report. 

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other Information. In 
doing so, we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Report or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information in 
the Financial Report and based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained 
prior the date of this Auditor’s Report we have nothing to report. 

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Report 

The Directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 
fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such 
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that 
gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.   

In preparing the financial report, the Directors are responsible for assessing the entity’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the consolidated entity or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individual or in aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this 
financial report. 

69



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report (cont’d) 

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement 
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the consolidated entity’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and other related disclosures made by the Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the consolidated entity to cease to
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the consolidated entity to express an opinion on the group financial report. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.  

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate 
threats or safeguards applied.  
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report (cont’d) 

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial report of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  

Report on the Remuneration Report 

Opinion 

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the directors’ report for the period ended 30 June 
2020.  

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Tubi Limited for the period ended 30 June 2020, complies with 
section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.  

Responsibilities 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration 
Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
Standards. 

PKF 

SCOTT TOBUTT 
PARTNER 

30 SEPTEMBER 2020 
SYDNEY 
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Additional Information for Listed Public Companies
30 June 20120

The following information is current as at 27 September 2020.

Ordinary Shares (ASX:2BE)

Distribution of Shareholders

Fully Paid Ordinary 
Shares Number
Holdings Ranges Holders Total Units %
1-1,000 30 1,211 0.000
1,001-5,000 80 242,087 0.080
5,001-10,000 139 1,233,910 0.400
10,001-100,000 403 15,491,700 4.990
100,001-9,999,999,999 148 293,360,094 94.530
Totals 800 310,329,002 100.000

Top 20 Shareholders

No. Name

No. of 
Ordinary 
Shares 
Held

% of 
Issued 
Capital

1. BALD HILL QUARRY PTY LTD 58,799,167 18.947%
2. OXLEIGH PTY LTD 58,549,147 18.867%
3. CHIARA CORPORATION PTY LTD <RUSSO FAMILY A/C> 37,949,642 12.229%
4. J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED 24,691,005 7.956%
5. BETA GAMMA PTY LTD <WALSH STREET S/F A/C> 7,500,000 2.417%
6. KTM VENTURES INNOVATION FUND LP 7,222,222 2.327%
7. SEALIGHT CAPITAL PTY LTD 6,700,000 2.159%
8. GW BURKE INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <BURKE

INVESTMENT A/C> 5,833,333 1.880%
9 CS THIRD NOMINEES PTY LIMITED <HSBC CUST NOM AU

LTD 13 A/C> 5,304,384 1.709%
10. CHARLES & CORNELIA GOODE FOUNDATION PTY LTD

<CCG FOUNDATION A/C> 4,999,999 1.611%
11. STRUCTURE INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <ROGERS FAMILY

A/C> 4,611,112 1.486%
12. BANNABY INVESTMENTS PTY LIMITED <BANNABY SUPER

FUND A/C> 3,807,111 1.227%
13. MR DAVID ALAN VERSCHOOR & MRS DANIELLE MILINDA

VERSCHOOR <D&D VERSCHOOR SUPERFUND A/C> 3,531,000 1.138%
14. NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED 3,333,334 1.074%
15. WHITS END PTY LTD 3,135,000 1.010%
16. IFM PTY LTD <IFM SUPER FUND A/C> 2,771,000 0.893%
17. MR DAVID RIDLEY GRAY 2,166,169 0.698%
18. MR CRAIG LAWN & MRS JOY LAWN <LAWN FAMILY

SUPER FUND A/C> 1,942,500 0.626%
19. CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 1,901,196 0.613%
20. ROGERS SF MANAGEMENT PTY LTD <ROGERS SUPER

FUND A/C> 1,722,222 0.555%

Total Securities of Top 20 Holdings 246,469,543 79.422%
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Total of Securities 310,329,002

Substantial Shareholders

The following shareholders are substantial holders:

Holder Name Number of 
Shares

% Voting 
Power

Oxleigh Pty Ltd1 117,348,3144 37.81%4

Bald Hill Quarry2 117,348,3144 37.81%4

Chiara Corporation Pty Ltd3 37,949,642 12.23%

J P Morgan Nominees Australia Pty Limited 24,691,005 7.96%

1. Oxleigh Pty Ltd is controlled by director Mr. Michael Tilley
2. Bald Hill Quarry Pty Ltd is controlled by director Mr. Anthony Willsallen
3. Chiara Corporation Pty Ltd is controlled by director Mr. Marcello Russo
4. Oxleigh Pty Ltd and Bald Hill Quarry Pty Ltd have entered in to a Consultation Deed Consultation Deed under

which each has agreed to not dispose of Shares without first notifying and consulting with the other party on
(among other things) the terms, the manner and the extent to which the other party may acquire those shares.
The effect of the Consultation Deed is that each Related Party Shareholder (among other things) has a
³UHOHYDQW�LQWHUHVW´��DV�WKDW�WHUP�LV�GHILQHG�LQ�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQV�$FW��LQ�HDFK�RWKHU¶V�6KDUes and has voting
power of 37.81% in the Company.

Voting Rights

Each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each member present 
at a meeting or by proxy has one vote on a show of hands. 

Unmarketable Holders

There are 140 shareholders holding less than a marketable parcel of shares based on the 
closing price of AUD 0.073 on 25 September 2020 representing a total of 4,25,223 shares.

Restricted Securities

The Company has the 69,871,200 fully paid ordinary restricted securities which are voluntarily escrowed for 
24 months from quotation (ending 16/06/2021).

Options (ASX:2BEO)

Tubi Limited has 22,395,423 listed options on issue exercisable at $0.15 and expiring 30 June 2020.  

These are held by 308 Optionholders.  

Distribution of Optionholders

Listed Options Number

Holdings Ranges Holders Total Units %

1-1,000 34 16,658 0.070

1,001-5,000 134 305,213 1.360

5,001-10,000 29 214,602 0.960

10,001-100,000 68 2,602,040 11.620

100,001-9,999,999,999 43 19,256,910 85.990

Totals 308 22,395,423 100.000
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Top 20 Optionholders

No. Name

No. of 
Options 
Held

% of 
Issued 
Capital

1. OXLEIGH PTY LTD 2,222,222 9.923%
2. BALD HILL QUARRY PTY LTD 2,222,222 9.923%
3. J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED 2,091,016 9.337%
4. CS THIRD NOMINEES PTY LIMITED <HSBC CUST NOM

AU LTD 13 A/C> 1,925,927 8.600%
5. NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED 1,111,111 4.961%
6. BETA GAMMA PTY LTD <WALSH STREET S/F A/C> 833,333 3.721%
7. KTM VENTURES INNOVATION FUND LP 740,741 3.308%
8. CHIARA CORPORATION PTY LTD <RUSSO FAMILY

A/C> 740,741 3.308%
9 CHARLES & CORNELIA GOODE FOUNDATION PTY LTD 

<CCG FOUNDATION A/C> 565,681 2.526%
10. MR KENNETH JOSEPH HALL <HALL PARK A/C> 444,444 1.985%
11. KNIGHT61 INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <KNIGHT61

INVESTMENTS A/C> 387,074 1.728%
12. STRUCTURE INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <ROGERS

FAMILY A/C> 370,371 1.654%
13. BANNABY INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <BANNABY SUPER

FUND A/C> 370,370 1.654%
14. MR DAVID RIDLEY GRAY 370,367 1.654%
15. E-TECH CAPITAL PTY LTD <ASF SUPER FUND A/C> 333,333 1.488%
16. BEARAY PTY LIMITED <BRIAN CLAYTON S/F A/C> 333,333 1.488%
17. GW BURKE INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <BURKE

INVESTMENT A/C> 277,778 1.240%
18. MASTER STEPHEN DINESH RAJARATNAM 248,413 1.109%
19. APPWAM PTY LTD 233,333 1.042%
20. BEIRNE TRADING PTY LTD 231,111 1.032%

Total Securities of Top 20 Holdings 16,052,921 71.679%

Total of Securities 22,395,423

Voting Rights

Options do not carry a right to vote.
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Corporate Directory

Company
Tubi Limited ACN 139 142 493
2 Hopetoun Street  
Paddington NSW 2021 
Phone: +61 2 9331 8725 
Email companysecretary@tubigroup.com 
Web www.tubigroup.com

Directors
Mr. Simon Bird Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Mr. Marcello Russo Managing Director
Mr. Tony Willsallen Non-Executive Director
Mr. Brent Emmett Independent Non-Executive Director 

Company Secretary
Mr. Ariel Sivikofsky Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer

Share Registry
Boardroom Pty Limited 
Level 12
225 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Telephone +61 2 9290 9600

Auditor
PKF
Level 8 
��2¶&RQQHOO�6WUHHW
Sydney NSW 2000

ASX Code: 2BE
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